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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 SPEAKER QUINN: We will be joined by

          3  the Chair of our Transportation Committee in a few

          4  minutes. I think he might be lost somewhere on the

          5  college grounds, as I was, Council Member John Liu

          6  of Queens. But we didn't want to keep you waiting

          7  any longer, so we felt we would get started.

          8                 I will introduce my colleagues who

          9  are with me today. We have Council Member Darlene

         10  Mealy of Brooklyn, a member of our Transportation

         11  Committee. We have two of our three Staten Island

         12  Council members, our Minority Leader Jimmy Oddo, and

         13  Council Member Mike McMahon, plus four or five

         14  members of the Council staff.

         15                 This is an official hearing of our

         16  Transportation Committee, so I think you'll see more

         17  Council members who are members of the Committee

         18  coming in and out as the evening goes on.

         19                 Let me just start and see if my

         20  colleagues have anything they want to say to kick

         21  this off.  And also, before I turn to our first

         22  panel, I want to thank the Department of

         23  Transportation, in particular Commissioner

         24  Weintraub, for being with us this evening.

         25                 A few months ago I spoke at the
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          2  Staten Island Chamber of Commerce, and I know we

          3  have some folks from the Chamber here tonight, and I

          4  want to thank them. If they will stand up so we

          5  could recognize them, that would be great. And at

          6  that Chamber breakfast, and in preparing for that

          7  Chamber breakfast, I heard about concerns and

          8  challenges and problems that Staten Islanders face,

          9  and one that I heard over and over and over, the

         10  concern for residents and the concern for business

         11  people, is the problem of traffic.

         12                 And I know obviously other parts of

         13  government have heard that concern, as well, which

         14  is why the Mayor last January, I believe it was,

         15  convened the Staten Island Traffic Task Force.

         16                 And we've put this hearing together

         17  tonight for a couple of reasons: One, so we in the

         18  Council, those who represent Staten Island and those

         19  who represent other parts of the City, can hear

         20  directly from Staten Island residents about your

         21  thoughts and concerns regarding traffic on Staten

         22  Island.

         23                 Two, we convened the meeting so we

         24  could get an update from the Department of

         25  Transportation on the status and what's going on
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          2  with the Staten Island Traffic Task Force.

          3                 We also wanted to have this hearing

          4  at night and on Staten Island, so we would have to

          5  fight the traffic to get here now -- but so we could

          6  make it easier for Staten Island residents to come

          7  forward and give us their direct experiences, and

          8  also their direct suggestions about what could help

          9  the problem.

         10                 I know that there are concerns about

         11  whether or not there is not enforcement personnel

         12  assigned to Staten Island. I know there are

         13  particular challenges because the expressway is

         14  actually a State overseen roadway. There's questions

         15  again, about whether or not the resources are given

         16  to Staten Island in this area, and we're hoping

         17  tonight to explore those questions and others and to

         18  give us in the Council more ideas and suggestions so

         19  as we move forward with the course of our work in

         20  the next three years, we'll have a better sense of

         21  what our goals should be to help reduce the traffic

         22  problems on Staten Island.

         23                 I wanted to say we've also been

         24  joined by Council Member and Senator-elect Andrew

         25  Lanza, and we've also been joined by our Chair, who
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          2  I will very happily give the gavel over to, Council

          3  Member John Liu, and I will just see if any of my

          4  Staten Island colleagues have anything they want to

          5  say before I turn it over to the Chair?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Madam

          7  Speaker. And let me just thank you and Chairman Liu

          8  for having this hearing here on Staten Island. When

          9  you have 450,000 people on an island that has

         10  260,000 registered cars, and you have virtually no

         11  mass transit system, you're going to have a traffic

         12  problem. And I think all of us on Staten Island

         13  letting government and the citizens know that there

         14  is no silver bullet to cure this, but there are

         15  tangible steps we can take and the Administration is

         16  starting them the way it should be under the

         17  Commissioner to do that. And we're here to hear from

         18  you and do everything in our power to fix it, even

         19  if it's one intersection at a time.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         21  James.

         22                 I think we all know there is a dragon

         23  out there on our borough, a multi-headed dragon that

         24  we face every time we try to go anywhere, and that

         25  is traffic. And you don't need me to tell you what
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          2  an incredibly difficult dragon this is to slay, but

          3  I believe that we have to use every tool available

          4  to us to bring about the change, the most change and

          5  the most improvement that we can possibly conjure

          6  up, and this hearing is certainly one of those

          7  tools, because as the Speaker said, it's an

          8  opportunity for us to hear from the Department and

          9  the work that they, and their traffic task force has

         10  been doing, and they're having some great

         11  accomplishments there, which we're very grateful

         12  for, and to also hear from all of you to get your

         13  perspectives publicly, to give us further ideas

         14  which identify the problem, as we know are all out

         15  there, whether it's road congestion, lack of mass

         16  transportation, and lack of bus service.

         17                 And I do want to thank Speaker Quinn

         18  particularly. This is not the first formal hearing

         19  of the City Council that she has held on Staten

         20  Island. Before she was Speaker, when we had a

         21  hospital crisis, brought to the fore by the closing

         22  of Bailey Seton, she brought our Health Committee

         23  out here and we've had two formal hearings of that

         24  Committee, and when a report was issued that hunger,

         25  Staten Island hunger has the highest rate of unmet
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          2  need of Staten Island compared to the rest of the

          3  City, she immediately came out with the General

          4  Welfare Committee and had another hearing. And you

          5  have to understand, to have this hearing here

          6  tonight, it doesn't happen that often. Usually

          7  everybody has to come to City Hall and have this

          8  process, and I want to thank Chairman John Liu, who

          9  is also not having his first hearing on Staten

         10  Island, when we proposed a bill to increase ferry

         11  service, John held a full hearing out here. And it's

         12  incredible, because when you think about it, they

         13  represent districts in Manhattan and in Queens and

         14  for Council Member Darlene Mealy from Brooklyn --

         15                 SPEAKER QUINN: Which is why we all

         16  got lost on the College of Staten Island.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: But you're

         18  not the people who vote for them, so they're not

         19  here because they're looking for your votes. They're

         20  here because they are Citywide officials who care

         21  about this incredible, incredible problem, this

         22  great dragon that we have to work together to

         23  wrestle and to slay.

         24                 So, I think we all who are from

         25  Staten Island should give those who are not here
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          2  from Staten Island, including Commissioner Weinshall

          3  and her staff, a round of applause for being here.

          4                 And that's my introduction. Now I

          5  have about 25 pages that I want to read. You're not

          6  here to listen to me.

          7                 Andrew.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Thank you. It's

          9  no surprise, obviously, as Staten Islanders we

         10  understand and appreciate that traffic and

         11  transportation affects people at a very fundamental

         12  level. It's going to the store, dropping the kids

         13  off at school, commuting to work, we as Staten

         14  Islanders have a lot of frustration, lots of reasons

         15  why we point the finger of blame, many directions,

         16  years of improper planning. The good news is this,

         17  we've got focus on the issue like never before. Both

         18  sides of the building over at City Hall is focused.

         19  And I think that's proven tonight with the City

         20  Council, well represented. Thank you, Madam Speaker,

         21  Chairman Liu of the Transportation Committee, my

         22  colleagues from Staten Island, and the other members

         23  of the Committee. And the Administration.

         24  Commissioner Weinshall, thank you, and folks from

         25  City Planning, and Department of Transportation,
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          2  Borough Commissioner John Jochio (phonetic).

          3                 There's a focus for the first time I

          4  think in a long, long time. And the good news is

          5  this: We know what the problem is. I think there are

          6  a number of solutions and it could be worse, there

          7  might not be any solutions to this problem, and the

          8  task force assembled by Mayor Bloomberg that's led

          9  by Commissioner Weinshall has already identified,

         10  already identified more than 50 solutions that I

         11  think in the long-term are really going to finally

         12  address some of the problems we have.

         13                 We don't have all the answers, and

         14  that's what tonight is all about. I look forward to

         15  hearing from you. Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         17  I want to thank the Speaker, Christine Quinn, and

         18  all of my colleagues for joining us here today, for

         19  coming out here. And most of all, I'd like to thank

         20  all of the residents who have joined us on this

         21  foggy night outside.

         22                 During these past few years,

         23  especially after September 11th, a lot has been said

         24  about recovery in the economic world. And to the

         25  extent where growth involves giving people more
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          2  choices, and more opportunity for jobs, I think that

          3  generally serves the overall City well, but it

          4  should not be at the expense of choking neighborhood

          5  vitality with increased traffic congestion.

          6                 And, so, while traffic congestion is

          7  often a sign of growth, it does not have to be a

          8  given. So, that is why we have to explore every

          9  avenue possible to decrease that congestion so that

         10  neighborhoods do not actually become stagnant with

         11  the congestion.

         12                 I think a lot has been said already.

         13  We want to hear from our panelists, including our

         14  Commissioner, and we want to hear from as many of

         15  the general possible tonight.

         16                 I would like to acknowledge that

         17  we've been joined by the honorable John Lavelle,

         18  Assemblymember from Staten Island, and I thank you

         19  for joining us Assemblyman.

         20                 Assemblyman Lavelle and I and the

         21  Speaker spent several days together this past

         22  weekend, and this was one of the most pressing

         23  issues that we talked about with regard to the

         24  concerns of Staten Island residents.

         25                 I will add that many of the concerns
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          2  that we're going to explore here are experiences

          3  shared in other parts of the City that have

          4  experienced the rapid growth, parts of Queens, parts

          5  of Brooklyn, and also parts of the Bronx.

          6                 So, what we can learn here can

          7  extrapolate to other parts of the City as well. Let

          8  me take the opportunity to thank the college of

          9  Staten Island, President Dr. Marlene Springer; Vice

         10  President for Finance and Administration Angelo

         11  Aponte, and Mannie Gonzalez from the Office of

         12  Special Events for their hospitality in allowing us

         13  to use this room for our hearing.

         14                 And without further ado, let me

         15  welcome our representatives, officials from the

         16  Department of Transportation, and Iris Weinshall and

         17  her colleagues here.

         18                 Commissioner Weinshall, thank you for

         19  joining us today.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Thank you.

         21                 Good evening, Council Member Quinn,

         22  Chairman Liu and members of the Transportation

         23  Committee. I'm Iris Weinshall, Commissioner of the

         24  New York City Department of Transportation. And with

         25  me here today are David Woloch, DOT's Deputy
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          2  Commissioner of External Affairs, Tom Curitore, DOT

          3  Staten Island Borough Commissioner, and Len

          4  Garica-Duran, the Department of City Planning's

          5  Staten Island Director. Thank you for providing us

          6  with the opportunity to testify -- give you a little

          7  bit of a slide show -- at this oversight hearing on

          8  this Administration's efforts to improve traffic on

          9  Staten Island. I commend Chairman Liu and the

         10  Committee for focusing on this issue, which is so

         11  important to Staten Island, and we're always happy

         12  to be back here in Staten Island, whether in the fog

         13  or not.

         14                 On January 26 of this year, Mayor

         15  Bloomberg zeroed in on transportation as one of the

         16  biggest challenges confronting Staten Island. In his

         17  State of the City Address, the Mayor called on DOT

         18  and City Planning to report back to him in 60 days

         19  with a comprehensive program to tackle traffic

         20  congestion in the borough. In other administrations

         21  or other governments, a call to action like that

         22  might not have gone any further than a speech. But

         23  this is a results-oriented administration and when

         24  Mayor Bloomberg asks that something happens, it gets

         25  done.
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          2                 With this mandate from the Mayor, we

          3  had 60 days to figure out not only what needed to be

          4  done, but how we were going to do it. Using the

          5  Staten Island Growth Management Task Force as a

          6  model, we quickly brought together a group that

          7  included all the regional transportation agencies,

          8  community representatives and elected officials,

          9  including the Borough President of Staten Island's

         10  three City Council members.

         11                 With only weeks before we had to

         12  report back to the Mayor, the knowledge and

         13  contributions of all the Task Force members, were

         14  not only welcome, but they were needed.

         15                 With a tight deadline, we had to

         16  deliver a comprehensive traffic improvement plan

         17  that focused on improving the borough's quality of

         18  life and ensuring the future economic development of

         19  the Island.

         20                 Before I talk about specific

         21  projects, I would like to point out that Staten

         22  Island is very unique from a transportation

         23  perspective in comparison to the other four

         24  boroughs. It is the fastest-growing county in the

         25  entire State of New York. Over the past 50 years,
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          2  the Borough's population grew by 132 percent, far

          3  outpacing the City's other four boroughs.

          4                 At the same time, Staten Island's

          5  population density is substantially less than the

          6  rest of the City, making it more like Los Angeles

          7  than Brooklyn or Manhattan. Many of the shopping

          8  centers, especially in the South Shore are difficult

          9  to reach without a car. Because of limited

         10  commercial and retail opportunities in the borough,

         11  many residents depend on automobiles for their daily

         12  trips to work, school and shopping.

         13                 As a result, the average Staten

         14  Island household has more than twice the citywide

         15  average for motor vehicle ownership. These problems

         16  are compounded by the Borough's roadway system which

         17  was never completely built out. There is no easy or

         18  direct route from New Dorp to the West Shore or from

         19  Port Richmond to Great Kills. Connections to the

         20  other boroughs are limited and the majority of its

         21  roadways are very narrow.

         22                 Staten Island's public transit is

         23  also limited compared to the amount of transit

         24  services available in the other boroughs. The Staten

         25  Island Railroad only reaches the eastern portion of
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          2  the island and fares are only collected at St.

          3  George. There is no train service on the North Shore

          4  and no connection to New Jersey. Additionally, both

          5  express and local buses, the linchpin of public

          6  transportation in the Borough, are delayed because

          7  of the very problems with traffic the Task Force is

          8  addressing.

          9                 Keeping these borough-specific

         10  challenges in mind, the Task Force set to work.

         11  Co-chaired by myself and New York City Planning

         12  Director Amanda Burden, the Task Force's 18 members

         13  include elected officials, City agency

         14  commissioners, and representatives of all the major

         15  transportation agencies, community boards and the

         16  Staten Island Chamber of Commerce. Its efforts have

         17  been unprecedented as we have been able to bring so

         18  many stakeholders to the table. And I would like to

         19  personally like to thank my good friend and the

         20  Borough President, James Molinaro, and Council

         21  Members Lanza, McMahon and Oddo, who brought issues

         22  to our attention and worked very hard in helping to

         23  bring it all together.

         24                 All these efforts culminated as the

         25  Task Force met as a group for the first time on
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          2  March 13, 2006 and met the 60-day deadline on March

          3  27, 2006, when it reviewed and proposed Traffic

          4  Improvement Plan and issued its findings which

          5  consisted of over 40 recommended Action Items and

          6  Initiatives. Over a third of those were short-term

          7  initiatives that we committed to completing within

          8  one year.

          9                 Since the findings have been

         10  released, we have been working aggressively to

         11  implement the short-term items while planning ahead

         12  for the long-term initiatives. And to ensure that

         13  these initiatives move forward, we committed

         14  ourselves to accountability.

         15                 Throughout 2006, the Task Force met

         16  publicly every 90 days to monitor progress upon the

         17  transportation recommendations, and it will continue

         18  to meet on a regular basis, with our next scheduled

         19  meeting in January.

         20                 While I will give some of the

         21  highlights now, I do encourage all of you to look at

         22  the Task Force reports, including presentations and

         23  updates made at each of our meetings, which can be

         24  found at nyc.gov/SIgrowth.

         25                 We have already been very successful
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          2  in implementing the short-term recommendations, with

          3  six initiatives completed in less than six months.

          4  Our first initiative was focused on improving high

          5  priority intersections. Five key intersections,

          6  selected based on input from elected officials and

          7  residents, have been redesigned and physically

          8  improved, Victory Boulevard and Jewett Avenue,

          9  Draper Place and Richmond Avenue, West Fingerboard

         10  Road and Clove Road, Victory Boulevard and Richmond

         11  Avenue, and Forest and South Avenues.

         12                 At Forest and South, for example, the

         13  intersection was milled and repaved, we realigned

         14  intersection geometry, removed a painted center

         15  median, removed parking to add an additional travel

         16  lane, and installed a left turn bay and arrow on

         17  Forest Avenue.

         18                 At the same time, we've completed

         19  daylighting at 84 locations by removing parking

         20  close to the intersection. This provides visibility

         21  for drivers to see approaching traffic so that they

         22  know when it's safe to proceed with a turn or a stop

         23  sign.

         24                 We've also made substantial progress

         25  on the recommendations for Hylan Boulevard, a road
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          2  with heavy congestion and with safety concerns at

          3  many locations. To address these problems, at the

          4  request of the Borough President, we had initiated a

          5  left-turn study that reviewed 110 intersections.

          6  Fifty intersections already prohibited left turns by

          7  closing the medians with asphalt barriers at 12

          8  intersections and by installing guide rails and/or

          9  signs at the remaining 21.

         10                 Finally, we have added left turn

         11  signals at 12 intersections and added left-turn bays

         12  at two intersections.

         13                 Most importantly, under the

         14  leadership of Borough Commissioner Curitore, this

         15  summer we immediately went to work to make these

         16  improvements.

         17                 The Police Department has also done

         18  their part to increase enforcement on this vital

         19  artery. Since these changes have been implemented,

         20  we believe that congestion along Hylan Boulevard has

         21  already begun to lessen. But we're not finished yet.

         22  Over the long-term, we plan to add more left-turn

         23  bays and Hylan Boulevard will serve as one of the

         24  five corridors lanes for the City's new bus rapid

         25  transit program.
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          2                 The Task Force also took steps to

          3  improve institutional cooperation and cut through

          4  red tape. We enhanced coordination among City

          5  agencies, especially in the waiver request process.

          6  Over the years the review of waiver requests, or

          7  builders' pavement plans, was uncoordinated,

          8  resulting in waivers being granted where one agency

          9  did not recognize the impact it would have on the

         10  efforts of other agencies. As a result, traffic

         11  congestion and road safety issues exist because

         12  these waivers effectively give up the City's ability

         13  to widen key roadways in the future and meet the

         14  growing traffic needs on Staten Island.

         15                 This was another issue on which the

         16  Borough President deserves a lot of credit. The Task

         17  Force recommended that review of all waiver requests

         18  be coordinated between the Department of Buildings,

         19  Transportation, and City Planning to insure that

         20  these plans are considered comprehensively.

         21                 In addition, the Task Force

         22  recommended having developers make improvements to

         23  key intersections and roadways as part of their

         24  pavement plans. The coordinated review process began

         25  in April 2006, and because of this new process, we
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          2  will, for one, be able to widen Victory Boulevard

          3  where it intersects with Richmond Avenue,

          4  complimenting other short-term improvements we have

          5  made at this intersection.

          6                 We also took steps to make capital

          7  projects move more quickly. As the Staten Island

          8  delegation is all too aware, many of these corridor

          9  and intersection improvement projects have been on

         10  the shelves for decades, only to be pushed back year

         11  after year.

         12                 Working with the Department of Design

         13  and Construction, the Task Force set out to not only

         14  move individual projects forward, but to improve

         15  processes that were contributing to the delays.

         16                 The Task Force created a planning and

         17  coordination group, using Arthur Kill road as a

         18  model for the planning of complex projects.

         19  Environmental review will be augmented by beginning

         20  the legal review in earlier stages and setting aside

         21  funds for environmental review earlier in the

         22  planning process.

         23                 Property acquisition, a requirement

         24  for a number of these roadway projects, will also

         25  move more quickly. DDC has significantly increased
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          2  the number of attorneys assigned to it and has

          3  streamlined its legal procedures.

          4                 Hopefully, these and other

          5  improvements will guarantee that a project like

          6  Amboy and Seguine, which had been on the drawing

          7  board for almost 30 years, will move forward at a

          8  much quicker pace.

          9                 I'm happy to report tonight that

         10  construction on that very project, which began in

         11  June of 2006, was finished on September 4. As we

         12  look forward to projects such as Forest Hill Road

         13  and Arthur Kill Road, we believe that the systematic

         14  changes being put in place will help to move them

         15  from planning to completion much more rapidly.

         16                 But to get these projects done, above

         17  anything else, we need the political will, not just

         18  from the Administration, but from our partners on

         19  the Council, on the Community Boards, among civic

         20  organizations in Albany and in Washington. As we've

         21  seen with our proposed Richmondtown-area

         22  improvements, a few detractors can impede our

         23  progress.

         24                 The Task Force has created an

         25  opportunity for all of us to hone in on these
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          2  critical projects and work together to move them

          3  forward.

          4                 As important as these roadway

          5  projects, are we realize that the best way to reduce

          6  congestion is to have fewer cars on the road. But

          7  for that to happen we simply must provide effective,

          8  alternative ways of getting around, and that means

          9  we have to focus on mass transit.

         10                 Public transportation needs to be

         11  more than just a substitute for the car. It needs to

         12  be the fastest, most reliable, and most accessible

         13  mode of transportation.

         14                 I mentioned before that Hylan

         15  Boulevard will be one of the five pilot bus rapid

         16  transit corridors introduced over the next two

         17  years. But the MTA has already gone forward with

         18  many of the Task Force's short-term recommendations.

         19  They have provided new limited bus stop service,

         20  with the S90 and S96 serving the North Shore, and

         21  the S93 between Staten Island and Brooklyn.

         22                 Also, local bus service is expected

         23  to be extended in the South Shore.

         24                 New York City Transit's planning

         25  analysis is currently underway, examining bus route
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          2  spacing, changes in land use, and possibilities for

          3  extensions and modifications of existing service.

          4                 The Staten Island Railway has

          5  upgraded its service with new schedules and enhanced

          6  and expanded its express service, especially during

          7  the rush hours. To support the Railway improvements,

          8  DOT constructed a Park and Ride at Great Kills three

          9  months ahead of schedule and is looking for

         10  opportunities to introduce more facilities in the

         11  borough.

         12                 The MTA also initiated a study of a

         13  potential bus connection between Staten Island and

         14  Bayonne, New Jersey that would connect to the Hudson

         15  Bergen Light Rail. At this point they finished

         16  collecting data and are now evaluating the

         17  feasibility of service options.

         18                 In addition, thanks to the efforts of

         19  Assemblyman Cusick and his colleagues in the State

         20  Assembly and Senate who sponsored the legislation,

         21  the State Legislature passed, and the Governor

         22  signed into law, a bill that allows the MTA to

         23  provide service to New Jersey.

         24                 There is still a lot of work ahead of

         25  us, especially with the Task Force's medium and
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          2  long-term recommendations. These important projects

          3  will require the same type of collaboration that ha

          4  made the Task Force's work on short-term initiatives

          5  so successful.

          6                 The New York State Department of

          7  Transportation has already taken important steps

          8  towards improving the Staten Island Expressway and

          9  the Port Authority has made substantial progress on

         10  the Goethals Bridge replacement project.

         11                 To fulfill the Mayor's ambitious

         12  program, we had to act quickly. Now as we move

         13  forward, we hope to continue to work with you and

         14  other elected officials to make sure that the rest

         15  of the Task Force's projects are funded and properly

         16  carried out.

         17                 I would like to conclude by stating

         18  that I am very proud of the Task Force's efforts and

         19  all those who worked diligently to get this work

         20  completed.

         21                 We will continue to work to push

         22  forward the long-term initiatives with all

         23  stakeholders at the table.

         24                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         25  testify before you this evening, and at this time we
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          2  would be happy to take any questions you may have.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

          4  Commissioner. That was nice.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I'm glad you

          6  enjoyed it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Let me acknowledge

          8  that we've also been joined by a member of this

          9  Committee, Council Member Daniel Garodnick from

         10  Manhattan, and we have questions from Council Member

         11  Mike McMahon.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Commissioner and to your

         14  staff, thank you for the wonderful presentation, and

         15  clearly you have taken the Mayor's mandate seriously

         16  and completed a great many tasks.

         17                 I have a small issue and then I want

         18  to talk about big issues. We have in Staten Island

         19  two intersections that have traffic agents in the

         20  station there who actually direct traffic, and they

         21  make an incredible difference, and we have many

         22  intersections that we could use that relief. How do

         23  we get more agents out there?

         24                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, first

         25  of all, I'm not the Police Commissioner, but --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: No, but

          3  you're the expert.

          4                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, as you

          5  know, traffic enforcement agents and the whole, all

          6  the enforcement really falls under the Police

          7  Department now.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Do they rely

          9  on you for input? Do they look to you to find out

         10  which intersections need it the most?

         11                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, they

         12  work on a number of different levels. They work on

         13  construction-related projects, they work on fixed

         14  post, and they also work on special projects that

         15  come up.

         16                 In order to support the Task Force

         17  efforts, the Police Department is committed to an

         18  additional 20 percent of overtime in the Borough of

         19  Staten Island which can go to fund additional

         20  traffic enforcement agents.

         21                 And they have also, in terms of the

         22  Police Department, in terms of the Zero Tolerance

         23  Policy here on Staten Island, particularly around

         24  schools, Traffic Enforcement Agents and policemen

         25  when they have been available.
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          2                 We will be talking and working with

          3  the Police Department further, identifying other

          4  intersections. There are only two that have a fixed

          5  post. But as this task force continues, we will work

          6  with the Police Department and have a dialogue with

          7  them, where we think there are other opportunities

          8  for them --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: That 20

         10  percent funding, is that in place now? Are these

         11  folks agents, or is that something that is not in

         12  place yet?

         13                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: The overtime

         14  is in place but they're not fixed post. They move

         15  the traffic agents around on an as-needed basis. So,

         16  if they're not fixed post, they move them around.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Because,

         18  again, I think that's an issue that we could follow

         19  up on, because I think when we have those fixed-post

         20  agents, they will make a really big difference, and

         21  that will be very helpful.

         22                 Enforcement clearly, we all know and

         23  everyone agrees that in terms of enforcement, we'll

         24  talk to the police about that, but we'll continue to

         25  work with your office to identify the locations and
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          2  to advocate for fixed-post personnel.

          3                 So, the bigger picture and the bigger

          4  items as we touched on, how do we move something

          5  like the North Shore and the West Shore rail line on

          6  Staten Island, that would move people on Staten

          7  Island over the Bayonne Bridge?

          8                 I know that that's not within your

          9  jurisdiction, but you guys are the experts. What do

         10  we have to do to the federal, State, MTA, Port

         11  Authority to kind of move this thing along, as

         12  Siguene and Amboy Road took 30 years, to focus on

         13  it, we need to get everybody to focus on the fact

         14  that we need the big ticket items, too, whether it's

         15  more random on the Staten Island Expressway, things

         16  that are out of jurisdiction, but we need your help

         17  in bringing them to fruition.

         18                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I'm going to

         19  let David Woloch, who has been working on the issue,

         20  answer that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Just identify

         22  yourself for the record.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Sure.

         24  It's David Woloch, Deputy Commissioner for External

         25  Affairs at the Department of Transportation.
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          2                 I think the first hurdle, which is

          3  one that we're on the way towards overcoming, is

          4  getting all the players to the table to start

          5  talking about this, which is something for for years

          6  hadn't really happened. And, you know, I think part

          7  of the challenge with something like having a North

          8  Shore, utilizing the North Shore railway, or having

          9  that connection over the Bayonne Bridge, part of the

         10  challenge is that you have all of these different

         11  players involved.

         12                 And one of the good things about the

         13  Task Force is we have the Port Authority, we have

         14  the City, we have State DOT, we have the MTA, we

         15  have different players at the table, and we've all

         16  acknowledged that both of those projects in

         17  particular, are worthy ones.

         18                 In terms of the North Shore Railway,

         19  this is actually something that the Department of

         20  City Planning is starting to look at. It's part of

         21  the North Shore Land Use study. So, I think that's

         22  maybe a particular piece early on that we want to

         23  move forward on.

         24                 But the key to this is to have that

         25  ongoing dialogue between the operating agencies, and
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          2  I think it's fair to say that in the past it hasn't

          3  necessarily been there in terms of these projects.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: But to get

          5  the -- I mean to really get sort of the hurry-up

          6  attitude to it, do you think that that's there?

          7  Because it clearly was there for the engineering

          8  changes that you made up. Maybe there's a better

          9  word, the short-term projects, that was there, the

         10  plan in 60 days and wanted to implement it in the

         11  year; what do we need to get, or how do we get

         12  somebody to say I want mass transportation on Staten

         13  Island, I want changes to the Staten Island

         14  Expressway, let's do these big capital projects. How

         15  do they get that urgency?

         16                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I think, as

         17  you know, Councilman, when you sat in on those Task

         18  Force meetings, we stated from the outset that those

         19  are, they are bigger deals to get done than the

         20  short-term.

         21                 I think the fact that where you see a

         22  change in Albany with the new Governor, who everyone

         23  knows, made a very impressive speech about

         24  transportation, he recognizes that that's really one

         25  the economic engines of the City, and I believe he
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          2  even mentioned Staten Island in his speech, I think

          3  --

          4                 SPEAKER QUINN: I suggested that he

          5  did.

          6                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Good.

          7                 So, I think the change in Albany, as

          8  David said, you know, there is an awareness and a

          9  willingness of all the parties to start working. And

         10  as we mentioned at the Task Force meeting, a lot of

         11  these projects carry a big dollar item.

         12                 As you said, these are not the easy

         13  solutions. Honestly, I mean we went through the low

         14  high-need three first (sic), and we're being very

         15  honest. It's now you've got to have the political

         16  will to get these longer term projects and to get

         17  the body in consensus from the entire community of

         18  Staten Island on some of these projects.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         20  Member McMahon.

         21                 Questions from Council Member Oddo.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Just for the

         23  record, I asked the Speaker to ask the Governor.

         24                 Commissioner, I think this question

         25  may fall just inside or slightly outside the topic
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          2  that we're here to discuss, but I think it's so

          3  important for Staten Island, and I'm going to take a

          4  chance in having the Chair rule me out of order, but

          5  it's something that you and I have talked about for

          6  a long time, and I think it's important to the

          7  people of Staten Island that they hear from you and

          8  the good work that the agency is doing, and that's

          9  the condition of our streets.

         10                 And as you know, although you're the

         11  Department of Transportation Commissioner, you know

         12  all too well the ramifications of over-development.

         13  And one of them is that you can't drive down a

         14  street on Staten Island that has not been cut up by

         15  a utility, by a builder, by a subcontractor, and

         16  it's been a pet peeve of mine for a long time how

         17  they don't properly restore the streets. And when

         18  you look at Staten Island streets, they're quilled,

         19  and it's not from the tradition pothole per se, it's

         20  from these manmade potholes.

         21                 The Mayor announced in the State of

         22  the City the Take Back The Street Program --

         23                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: -- And you've

         25  now had eight months or so to kind of implement
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          2  that. I was hoping you could give us an update and

          3  so the people in the audience and the people of

          4  Staten Island understand, that we are trying to rein

          5  in these contractors who rip up our streets

          6  willy-nilly and then dump the same gook back in and

          7  throw a bunch of asphalt on it and you have a bump

          8  and in six months you have a divot.  If you can just

          9  update that?

         10                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Let me just

         11  say that this is a Citywide problem, not just

         12  Councilman Garodnick's district or Council Member

         13  Quinn's, or Councilman Lanza's district, this is a

         14  Citywide problem, a Citywide issue.

         15                 And, you know, we are constantly

         16  milling and paving all around the City of New York.

         17  Milling and paving is not the answer, it's a

         18  short-term fix.

         19                 And what you have is, and we've all

         20  seen it in our neighborhoods, you mill and pave a

         21  road, it looks pristine and beautiful, and then Con

         22  Edison comes in with an emergency or Brooklyn Union

         23  Gas or Time Warner, and they dig out the street that

         24  we just milled and paved.

         25                 We are budgeted to do 900 million
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          2  miles a year of milling and paving. But quite

          3  frankly, that's just a drop in the bucket.

          4                 So, what the Mayor announced in the

          5  State of the Union was --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: State of the

          7  Union? Whoa. Is he running for President?

          8                 (laughter.)

          9                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: He has a

         10  program called Take Back The Streets which DOT

         11  developed in-house, and what it's doing is, it's a

         12  program to really hold contractors accountable. And,

         13  so, what we did is a number of things. You know,

         14  very often contractors will get violations. They

         15  will go to ECB, and if you look at the records, they

         16  have two-, three-hundred thousand dollars worth of

         17  violations, and they still keep on getting permits.

         18  We have shut them down. Those big contractors, the

         19  largest number, they can't get permits anymore,

         20  until they came in to pay off their fines. And a lot

         21  of these companies can't pay off these huge amounts

         22  of fines, so the recidivists have really been put

         23  out of business.

         24                 The other thing is that we are

         25  working a program, as you talk about backfill, a lot
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          2  of these contractors come in, they don't backfill

          3  the hole properly and what you get is, you have a

          4  sink hole after awhile.

          5                 We have done a number of things. We

          6  now have a new process where we can go in, take a

          7  core sample to see if the contractor has properly

          8  backfilled the hole, and if they haven't, number one

          9  they're called back, and number two, they're not

         10  going to get another permit until they do come back

         11  and properly backfill the hole.

         12                 The third thing that we did is, as

         13  you all know, we have inspectors, Councilman, we

         14  talked about this, there are clearly not enough of

         15  them. And very often inspectors go out, they would

         16  have no history about who was on the street before,

         17  who caused the issue. We now have gone to these

         18  horrible tablets where the inspector goes out, call

         19  pull up a location and get the full history, so

         20  pretty much on the spot can figure out who the

         21  contractor was, when were they last here, what they

         22  did and call them back to get them to make the

         23  correction.

         24                 This clearly is a challenge for us.

         25  It's the good and the bad news. The good news is
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          2  that, you know, there's a lot of activity going on

          3  in the City. There's a lot of building, there's a

          4  lot of increased demand for energy and for cable.

          5  That's the good news.

          6                 The bad news is that as a City, all

          7  of these are below ground, and so in order to get

          8  those utilities, you have to dig up a street.

          9                 Just one last thing. Working with

         10  Deputy Mayor Doctoroff now, what we are doing is

         11  we're going to comprehensively look at this entire

         12  system of how the streets get done, and what hammers

         13  we could have to sort of make this a more effective

         14  plan. And we don't want to keep on pouring good

         15  money after bad, in terms of milling and paving the

         16  streets and then having them dug up again. That just

         17  doesn't make sense.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Just two quick

         19  points, if I may?

         20                 We'll be doing another newsletter

         21  that Council members do, we have a sheet to fill out

         22  and send back in. And we've done this previously,

         23  and, frankly, I think we inundated then Commissioner

         24  Joccio and his staff with the response, because the

         25  response of Staten Islanders really was
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          2  overwhelming. We will be doing that in a couple of

          3  months again, and I imagine my colleagues will do it

          4  as well. Perhaps we can arrange, so I'm not just

          5  flooding you guys with the flood or e-mail and

          6  responses, that's one.

          7                 And two, can you provide us, so that

          8  we know where the bad guys are in our own community?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Absolutely.

         10  Absolutely.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And just for the

         12  record, after my joke about running for President,

         13  Council Member Lanza whispered in my ear that I'm

         14  insane. Thank you.

         15                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         17                 We have questions from Speaker Quinn.

         18                 SPEAKER QUINN: I think the Staten

         19  Islanders are clear on that.

         20                 (Laughter).

         21                 SPEAKER QUINN: I just want to say

         22  that the suggestion that the Minority Leader made

         23  about sharing that information of who are the bad

         24  behaviors, that might be great if we could get that

         25  on a Citywide basis to the Chair and Council members
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          2  dealing with this issue.

          3                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Absolutely.

          4                 SPEAKER QUINN: That's a great idea

          5  and can be very helpful.

          6                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: If I can say

          7  one thing?

          8                 SPEAKER QUINN: Yes.

          9                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: You know, as

         10  we all drive around and we walk around, if you see

         11  people working in your district, I would encourage

         12  you, you should call 3-1-1, we have inspectors out

         13  there, we'll come out while they're working to see

         14  if they have a permit.

         15                 SPEAKER QUINN: Right.

         16                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: And one thing

         17  that Councilman Oddo knows is that we now have a

         18  large number of inspectors working at night, which

         19  is a suggestion of yours. And so a 24-hour

         20  operation, please call and let us know. I can tell

         21  you a story. This morning I saw a crew digging up a

         22  sidewalk in Park Slope where I live. I called Hipwa

         23  (phonetic). I called them on my own staff. They were

         24  DOT employees digging up the sidewalk but it didn't

         25  make sense to me that we would be digging up the
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          2  sidewalk, so the Hipwa (phonetic) people came out

          3  and they were DOT employees.

          4                 SPEAKER QUINN: Also, in addition to

          5  getting that information, today we were thinking or

          6  talking, today the Council passed two pieces of

          7  legislation around legal demolition work and against

          8  contractors who do work in violation of the stop

          9  work order. They were both doing demolition work

         10  without a permit and violating a stop work order a

         11  misdemeanor and significantly raised the fines when

         12  those things happen, in the theory that for some

         13  contractors, they've just factored this into the

         14  cost of doing business at a low fine. And I just

         15  want to throw that out to think about, whether there

         16  are any behaviors were seeing here. Now, it's the

         17  utilities, but not 100 percent, whether there is

         18  something we should look at in the bills we passed

         19  as a model that might be helpful for this, what

         20  we're trying to fight here as well.

         21                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I'm just

         22  trying to think. I know that in Take Back The

         23  Streets we had some, we were able to do

         24  administratively what we do with plumbers and their

         25  licenses. Off the top of my head, I can't remember
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          2  right now.

          3                 SPEAKER QUINN: Okay. Well, if you

          4  guys think there is something that we can do that

          5  will be helpful, we will be happy to do it.

          6                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Great.

          7                 SPEAKER QUINN: And I just want to

          8  underscore what Council Member McMahon said about

          9  the traffic enforcement agents. I know that we'll

         10  have to speak to the Police Department and we'll

         11  also look to Mr. Vallone, the Chair of our Public

         12  Safety Committee, to underscore that concern about

         13  the number and the assignment.

         14                 When you were testifying,

         15  Commissioner, you mentioned that you, I guess with

         16  City Planning, were working on trying to have

         17  developers and contractors as part of their, I guess

         18  plans or whatever, also factor in commitments to

         19  help refine the roads; could you just elaborate on

         20  that a little bit?

         21                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, a lot

         22  of times the developers will come in, particularly

         23  here on Staten Island, I'm sure the residents know,

         24  and they don't take into consideration intersections

         25  and changes that have to be made or improvements
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          2  that have to be made.

          3                 What we're trying to do in City

          4  Planning is, as part of their obligation, they have

          5  to make these changes. Because if we have to go in

          6  later on, it can take months and sometimes years for

          7  us to get back to that.

          8                 So, you could have a development with

          9  people living there, and you could have unsafe

         10  conditions, as part of their commitment, we want the

         11  developer to have to do that work.

         12                 SPEAKER QUINN: And how is City

         13  Planning implementing that?

         14                 MR. GARCIA-DURAN: As the Commissioner

         15  has noted in her testimony, since April we've had a

         16  biweekly review with DOT, City Planning, DOB, Parks

         17  Department and now the Fire Department, so any

         18  project with City Planning is actually being

         19  reviewed by all the agencies at the same time and

         20  are under review.

         21                 SPEAKER QUINN: Just on Staten Island?

         22                 MR. GARCIA-DURAN: We do that on

         23  Staten Island. So developers are hearing comments

         24  from all agencies at the beginning of their projects

         25  and incorporated into their proposal.
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          2                 SPEAKER QUINN: And then you get a

          3  list as it relates to DOT's role with --

          4                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: No, not

          5  really. I think the issue with the developers is,

          6  quite frankly, when they're sort of picked off by

          7  City agencies --

          8                 SPEAKER QUINN: Right.

          9                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: So, they

         10  think that have everything going into the project,

         11  they like to know up front what all the agencies

         12  think what their obligation is, as opposed to

         13  finding out afterwards that, no, that's not the way

         14  DOT wanted it, or that's not the way City Planning

         15  wanted it. So, actually it's working a lot better.

         16                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I have a few

         18  questions and then we're going to go to the public.

         19  Once again, thank you for joining us tonight.

         20                 I think a lot of changes that we've

         21  seen here tonight and that you've described I think

         22  are very good. They all kind of fall in the category

         23  of expanding the traffic capacity of our streets and

         24  roadways, and is there -- and I'm happy that you

         25  noted in your testimony that really the real
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          2  long-term solution for this decreasing congestion is

          3  by giving people more mass transit options. Not that

          4  people won't want to drive, and people who want to

          5  continue to drive, they certainly have every right

          6  to drive. But at the same time, there are lots of

          7  people who would take mass transit if given the

          8  opportunity to do so. And, so, to what extent is the

          9  task force really working on expanding mass transit

         10  service to the people of Staten Island?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I think

         12  quite a number of the 40 projects the Commissioner

         13  referenced in the testimony actually are transit

         14  problems. She went through some of the short-term

         15  ones, but I think probably some of the most

         16  important long-term projects that we're talking

         17  about are projects that are still up for

         18  consideration by the Task Force are transit

         19  projects. Actually, Council Member McMahon

         20  referenced a couple of these in the beginning, like

         21  North Shore Railway, like the connection over the

         22  Bayonne Bridge. Another one is the third bus depot

         23  for the FDA, and probably the single most important

         24  project, one of the most important projects Citywide

         25  that the Department is working on now is the bus
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          2  Rapid Transit Initiative. So, there are a few

          3  components that relate to Staten Island that I think

          4  are worth pointing out. One which is in the

          5  testimony is the Hylan Boulevard project which will

          6  be one of the BRT pilots.

          7                 Another project is our Victory

          8  Boulevard Initiative, which will be given in the

          9  spring, which is the first time, the initiative that

         10  we've spoken with Council Member Oddo over the years

         11  about, signal prioritization.

         12                 And so I think there's a lot of

         13  Transit projects on the list.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure. And I just

         15  want to focus on this aspect a couple of minutes. I

         16  think that the rail projects were mentioned, and to

         17  the extent possible, we should try to accelerate

         18  those projects. And as you alluded to earlier, maybe

         19  with the new Administration, may be more emphasis on

         20  mass transit.

         21                 Even if that were put on a very fast

         22  trend, we're still talking about probably a decade

         23  before any of that stuff would come on line. In the

         24  meantime, in the very near term there is an absolute

         25  need to provide more transit options to help
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          2  decrease the congestion.

          3                 The Bus Rapid Transit I think is an

          4  excellent, excellent idea. We're supportive of that

          5  in this Committee, and we're happy that it's taking

          6  place in Staten Island.

          7                 The Bus Rapid Transit, though, only

          8  carries people from point to point on Staten Island.

          9  Is there some measure about what the increased

         10  capacity is, given that once the Bus Rapid Transit

         11  is implemented, how many more passengers, how many

         12  more passenger rides are going to be provided on a

         13  daily, or monthly, or yearly basis?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: There are

         15  a few different pieces to the answer. The first

         16  piece is, like you said, we're starting with five

         17  corridors, the idea is hopefully that the pilots are

         18  successful and we're able to roll out Bus Rapid

         19  Transit to other corridors.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, presumably to

         21  say that the Bus Rapid Transit Pilot Program is

         22  successful, it should mean that this many more

         23  passengers, or 50 percent increase in passengers was

         24  experienced?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: There's I
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          2  think two parts of success. One is the current

          3  ridership and all five corridors we're looking at,

          4  including the Richmond and Hylan corridor has high

          5  ridership levels. So, one thing is that the current

          6  riders will have faster trips. And the other piece

          7  is, as you said, to attract new riders.

          8                 And I should point out, and I think

          9  that Hylan Boulevard is a good example, the

         10  connection there actually goes over the Verrazano

         11  into Brooklyn and connects to the subway, and that's

         12  part of what we're talking of.

         13                 So, it's not just service with the

         14  big boroughs.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I think that's an

         16  excellent point that should be highlighted to

         17  everybody. Again, we respect people's desires and

         18  wishes to drive cars, but at the same time the

         19  people who would like the mass transit, we need to

         20  provide it.

         21                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Councilman,

         22  it's a Citywide, you know, the BRT that we've chosen

         23  for Brooklyn on Nostrand Avenue, it also connects

         24  people to subway lines, to the 2 and 3 and 4 and 5.

         25  So, the one that we chose in Manhattan, which is
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          2  First and Second Avenue, which we've discussed with

          3  the Councilman at great length, has to do with the

          4  fact that we only have one subway line on the East

          5  Side, and we have an overabundance of people on the

          6  buses on the East Side, and it's has to be a quicker

          7  system to get people both up and down First and

          8  Second Avenue.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. And has there

         10  been any studies on, maybe you have the statistics

         11  on what causes most of the congestion in Staten

         12  Island? Is it people moving from point to point on

         13  the Island? Or people move, residents of Staten

         14  Island leaving Staten Island to go to different

         15  parts in New Jersey, as well as the rest of the

         16  City? Or is a lot of it because of passenger traffic

         17  that really has nothing to do with the people of

         18  Staten Island?

         19                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I'm going to

         20  have Len talk about it, but let me just say that one

         21  of the Councilpeople said that the number of

         22  vehicles that are registered on Staten Island is

         23  like 270,000 vehicles, so there is the sheer volume.

         24                 The other thing I alluded to in my

         25  testimony, we have a lack of pilings (sic) here on
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          2  Staten Island on many of the roads, so that it's

          3  Indian roads. It's Indian paths. So, they're very

          4  narrow. They have not been expanded or enlarged. So,

          5  you have just this sheer volume.

          6                 As part of this Task Force study, we

          7  did study the census data where people are going in

          8  Staten Island. You may want to go over it because it

          9  was very interesting.

         10                 MR. GARCIA-DURAN: The quick answer to

         11  the question is yes to all of the above.

         12  Surprisingly enough, the majority of the folks who

         13  are community on the Island are actually commuting

         14  from neighborhood-to-neighborhood on the Island, but

         15  there is still a large portion of commuters who are

         16  traveling off the Island to Manhattan or to Brooklyn

         17  to get to their jobs. And the challenge there is the

         18  fact that you've got very limited opportunities,

         19  both from the mass transit side and also for roads.

         20  You've got either the ferry or you've got Verrazano

         21  Bridge to get you off the Island to the rest of the

         22  City.

         23                 And then we've also discovered the

         24  fact that despite they're very close to New Jersey

         25  and a lot of job offerings in New Jersey, there's
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          2  actually very few commuters actually going to New

          3  Jersey. Part of that may be the fact that you've got

          4  limited bridges that can take you to New Jersey, the

          5  Goethels and Outer Bridge are quite congested

          6  already and those leading to them are even more

          7  congested.

          8                 So, you don't have the opportunity of

          9  folks really finding more job opportunities on the

         10  other side of the hill because of the lack of means

         11  to get there, in addition to the fact there is no

         12  mass transit to New Jersey from Staten Island,

         13  despite the fact that it's just within spitting

         14  distance.

         15                 And, again, as the Commissioner

         16  pointed out the fact that despite the fact there

         17  were a lot of plans early in this last century to

         18  create a lot of road connections on Staten Island,

         19  they all did not move to fruition either through the

         20  fiscal crisis or through environmental concerns that

         21  together made it more difficult to make those road

         22  connections happen. So, we're faced with a lot of

         23  road connections. If you've ever seen an aerial map

         24  of Staten Island, there are a number of freeways

         25  that end up getting nowhere essentially, and the
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          2  ones that do remain are too overused today.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, I just want to

          4  emphasize the point that this is very helpful, and

          5  presumably the Task Force will be able to succeed in

          6  doing is analyze where it is that people are moving

          7  from to where, and giving people more mass transit

          8  options. I think there are lost job opportunities in

          9  New Jersey. And what you just stated about how very

         10  few Staten Islanders actually go to New Jersey for

         11  these jobs, that is really the reason why we need to

         12  have good transportation options in this City and

         13  everywhere else, to give more people more

         14  opportunities for jobs and for everything else.

         15                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I just want

         16  to point out, we worked off the 2000 Census, of the

         17  191,000 people who are employed who lived on Staten

         18  Island, 45 percent live and work on Staten Island.

         19  Twenty-seven to 28 percent worked on Manhattan, only

         20  six percent work in New Jersey.

         21                 I don't know if the next census is

         22  going to show it, but my gut tells me that it's

         23  going to show an increase of the number of people

         24  who actually live on Staten Island and work in New

         25  Jersey. I don't know if the Council would agree.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I would just

          3  like to comment quickly, in fact, in the Chamber

          4  we've done a lot of work on this. Certainly after

          5  9/11, sadly, a lot of jobs went from Downtown

          6  Manhattan to New Jersey, and it's been a big issue

          7  because the only way they can get there now, for any

          8  transportation, is with private buses or by car.

          9  That's been a big issue back and forth.

         10                 For me, I'm very happy that there's a

         11  BRT coming to Staten Island. We've really been

         12  banging the drum that there should be a BRT that

         13  goes from Richmond Avenue, Victory Boulevard, Forest

         14  Avenue over the Bayonne Bridge and to the Light Rail

         15  system. And I have to throw that out there again,

         16  because I don't want to say the one we're getting is

         17  not needed, but we have to have one in the other

         18  direction because it is incredible how many people

         19  call us all the time and say I can't get to my job

         20  in Jersey City or Hoboken or Newark and look at that

         21  Bayonne Bridge just sitting there.

         22                 So, we found a great increase. You're

         23  right, Commissioner, I think the next census will

         24  show a great increase, and let's get a BRT over the

         25  Bayonne Bridge as well. I think that would be a big
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          2  help.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

          4  Member.

          5                 A question from Council Member Lanza.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Thank you,

          7  Chairman. Just one quick question.

          8                 Commissioner, my colleague, Council

          9  Member McMahon and I agreed not to ask your opinion

         10  on whether or not NASCAR's proposed plan to bring an

         11  80,000-seat racetrack to Staten Island is good for

         12  Staten Island, whether or not our roads and

         13  transportation infrastructure can handle such a

         14  stadium. I think it's because we know the answer to

         15  that, but my question is whether or not NASCAR has

         16  submitted their so-called traffic plan to your

         17  agency for review?

         18                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I don't know.

         19  I would have to check. It has not come across my

         20  desk, so I have not seen it, nor have I heard about

         21  it. So, maybe they haven't submitted it yet.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Okay.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: According to

         24  David, he's started to get some things, so we'll

         25  have to get back to you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Please keep us

          3  apprised of the process.

          4                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Sure.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: If they ask for

          6  your opinion or your analysis.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Absolutely.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right. Just one

         10  last point. Earlier you said that most of the

         11  traffic was with car trips originating and ending in

         12  Staten Island?

         13                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, is there still a

         15  substantial number of car trips that are beginning

         16  in Staten Island and heading into Manhattan or parts

         17  of Brooklyn and then coming back to Staten Island?

         18  Is there some handle on how many trips there are?

         19                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: We have that

         20  data. We don't have it with us.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Is it a substantial

         22  amount?

         23                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: That are

         24  going to Brooklyn and Manhattan?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Right. Personal
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          2  vehicle traffic.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Have that

          4  data. I think what was surprising about the data is

          5  how much traffic within the borough, without leaving

          6  the borough. Certainly, as anybody knows, on the

          7  Gowanus in the morning there's a lot of traffic

          8  going to the central business district, but I think

          9  what the data points to is the problem is more than

         10  that.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I think the

         12  City Planning data show that there are a lot of

         13  employers here in Staten Island.

         14                 MR. GARCIA-DURAN: It's not just

         15  commuter traffic, it's the fact that also you've got

         16  shopping opportunities on Staten Island which are

         17  scattered throughout the Island, and there's not as

         18  much as you might find in other areas of the City or

         19  even other areas of the country, to the few retail

         20  areas they have on the Island, basically they have

         21  to get to it by auto. So, essentially what you're

         22  finding is throughout day it's not just commuter

         23  traffic but folks who are taking their kids to

         24  school, folks who are trying to get their daytime

         25  shopping done and are facing traffic congestion

                                                            58

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  throughout the day. And, so, we've discovered also

          3  that it's not just the commuter rush hour concern,

          4  it's basically something that people are finding on

          5  weekends and evenings throughout.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And is there a lot

          7  of traffic coming from outside Staten Island to

          8  destination points such as the shopping malls?

          9                 Could you pull the mic closer to you,

         10  please.

         11                 MR. GARICA-DURAN: We can get that

         12  data to you, but essentially what we discovered in

         13  fact there is so little mass transit and roads,

         14  there are so few roads actually making connections

         15  to Staten Island, and because it's such an

         16  atuo-based borough that you're having traffic on a

         17  daily consistent basis.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, I think one

         19  thing the Task Force certainly should look at would

         20  be providing more service, bus service within Staten

         21  Island, but also express bus service for Staten

         22  Island residents to Manhattan and other parts of New

         23  York City.

         24                 And with regard to the ferry service,

         25  is the ferry service now to the point where the full
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          2  capacity of people that would take the ferry service

          3  as opposed to driving through Brooklyn to get to

          4  Manhattan; is the service accommodating the entire

          5  capacity?

          6                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Yes. As a

          7  matter of fact --

          8                 SPEAKER QUINN: If you can have

          9  everybody move their mics closer.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: As a matter

         11  of fact, as you know, we increased ferry service

         12  with the Council, and I guess we just increased the

         13  weekend service. You know, it still is the biggest

         14  generator of mass transit use here in the borough,

         15  65,000 people a day use the Staten Island Ferry.

         16  But, again, it takes people in Lower Manhattan, and

         17  what we find is most of the people taking the ferry,

         18  the majority of them taking the ferry are people who

         19  work in Lower Manhattan, or work a short subway ride

         20  away, or they're students going to the various high

         21  schools and colleges in the City.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay, thank you.

         23                 We do have a question from Council

         24  Member Mealy.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Good evening,
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          2  Staten Island. I want to thank our Chair, our

          3  Speaker and our colleagues, and Commissioner and her

          4  staff.

          5                 I just wanted to know, with all the

          6  new construction and rail connections, has anyone

          7  discussed how it affect the businesses in Staten

          8  Island? Will it affect any of the businesses?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I think

         10  the overall answer is yes, hopefully positively,

         11  that all the different improvements were made are

         12  going to help people who live here, people who work

         13  here, the different businesses.

         14                 You know, any time you do work,

         15  there's going to be temporary inconveniences.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Has anyone

         17  spoken to them? Because some of them do close, I

         18  mean henceforth have slow business for a couple of

         19  months, or maybe even a year. Have anyone reached

         20  out to them?

         21                 BOROUGH COMMISSIONER CURITORE: Hi,

         22  I'm Tom. I'm the Transit Station Commissioner of

         23  Staten Island.

         24                 I actually go around and get a lot of

         25  phone calls. I'm actually in the field the majority
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          2  of the day, stopping in on businesses. I mean, some

          3  people, as the Commissioner said, some people are

          4  getting used to Hylan Boulevard, but it is moving

          5  traffic. I mean, I'm on the roads. Everybody knows

          6  I'm out there all day long basically, they see me

          7  out there all day long, and I'm stopping in on

          8  businesses.

          9                 You know, in the beginning it has an

         10  effect but I think as we go along, they'll ease.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I could just

         12  add to that, Council member. There is a good example

         13  on Richmond Road, there was a major construction for

         14  a sewer project where about ten businesses actually

         15  closed down. So, it is a big concern.

         16                 On the other hand, the lack of good

         17  transportation and having these traffic problems has

         18  caused business groups on Staten Island, like the

         19  Chamber of Commerce, to make it their number one

         20  issue.

         21                 So, the fixes are bad, but not fixing

         22  it is worse, because they all feel they could do

         23  better business if people could move around.

         24                 MR. GARCIA-DURAN: Linda Barron, the

         25  President of the Chamber of Commerce, is on the Task
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          2  Force also, and has generated a lot of good ideas.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Do you know, is

          4  there any major truck traffic, just as well,

          5  regarding to this?

          6                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Very well. Thank you

          8  very much, Council Member Mealy. And Commissioner,

          9  and Deputy Commissioners, I want to certainly thank

         10  you for joining us.

         11                 Council Member McMahon.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: One follow-up

         13  on that, Commissioner.

         14                 The truck route enforcement that you

         15  initiated, how is that going?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I'm glad

         17  you asked that.

         18                 We've been working very closely with

         19  the Police Department to finalize a pilot to

         20  disseminate to all men and women in the precincts,

         21  eventually this will be throughout the City,

         22  placards that will go in their summons book that

         23  will have information primarily about truck route

         24  enforcement, a map for that particular precinct,

         25  what the local and through routes are and all the
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          2  rules. It's a very complicated system, so after

          3  working with the Police Department, as part of our

          4  Citywide truck study, one of the conclusions was

          5  that we need to do a better job working with the

          6  Police Department and educating the people that work

          7  there and actually do the enforcement. And we hope

          8  to be rolling out that pilot over, within the next

          9  month. Thank you.

         10                 SPEAKER QUINN: I just wanted to say,

         11  we've done things like that in the past in my

         12  district. Because part of my district is Midtown

         13  Manhattan and there's a lot of truck traffic there,

         14  and you get to be very indifferent about it, but it

         15  can be very effective when you do that type of

         16  outreach.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. And

         18  Deputy Commissioner, we're very happy that you're

         19  very happy you're getting truck management

         20  questions.

         21                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: We've spent

         22  years on this.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, once again,

         24  thank you very much for taking the time out to come

         25  out to Staten Island and be a part of this.
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          2                 We are honored to be joined at this

          3  hearing by a member of the Assembly, John Lavelle,

          4  who we had introduced before, and I'd like to ask

          5  him to join us at the witness table.

          6                 Following Assemblyman Lavelle, we

          7  will hear from Megan Devereaux from the Borough

          8  President's Office, and Sean Sweeney from Community

          9  Board 1.

         10                 Assemblyman, great to have you here.

         11                 ASSEMBLYMAN LAVELLE: Thank you, John.

         12                 First of all, John, I really

         13  appreciate you coming to Staten Island.

         14                 SPEAKER QUINN: We're coming back

         15  tomorrow.

         16                 ASSEMBLYMAN LAVELLE: Good. You're

         17  welcome everyday.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: She thinks of

         19  us every day.

         20                 ASSEMBLYMAN LAVELLE: I know. And she

         21  tries to put our name in everybody's ear as often as

         22  possible. We appreciate that also.

         23                 My colleagues of Staten Island, the

         24  City Council, thank you for the opportunity, and my

         25  colleagues from off the Island, I really appreciate
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          2  your presence here, and maybe the things that I

          3  would like to address may be new to you, not new to

          4  our colleagues from Staten Island, and I'm uncertain

          5  as to the Speaker or the Chair.

          6                 First of all, Staten Island became

          7  part of the consolidated City of New York 108 years

          8  ago, and in that time one would have expected that a

          9  citizen from Staten Island would be treated equally

         10  to a citizen of the Bronx, a citizen of Queens, a

         11  citizen from Brooklyn, from Manhattan, but our 108

         12  year history does not show that.

         13                 First of all, we will start with, I'm

         14  going to go off Transportation a little bit just to

         15  show you how we perceive our treatment, the

         16  treatment of, we felt, abuse, and that was with the

         17  landfill. The landfill was here on Staten Island for

         18  over 50 years, probably for over the last two

         19  decades of its existence we were the only landfill

         20  in the City of New York, and we were accepting all

         21  of the City of New York's garbage. And, you know,

         22  that's what Staten Island became known for, having

         23  the largest landfill in the world. It actually was

         24  compared to the Great Wall of China, as one of the

         25  few things that could be identified from outerspace,
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          2  pictures that could identify the Staten Island

          3  landfill.

          4                 That's one thing. Fortunately, that

          5  is now in our past, and we will keep it in our past.

          6                 But then we go to Health and Hospital

          7  Corporation, you know, for 108 years Staten

          8  Islanders have been paying taxes. We have been

          9  underwrited, the Health and Hospital Corporation for

         10  all those years. Most of the persons on Staten

         11  Island, one nursing home. Staten Island is in a

         12  health care crisis. The Health and Hospitals

         13  Corporation really needs to step up to the plate and

         14  help us address our health concerns. So, that's

         15  another thing that we can address.

         16                 There's probably only one other place

         17  in the City of New York that I know that you may

         18  have to pay a toll to get home. Staten Islanders

         19  have to pay a toll to get home every night. From the

         20  Verrazano Bridge, when they come to New Jersey. I'm

         21  not suggesting we necessarily do away with the toll.

         22  It wouldn't be a bad idea, but maybe Staten

         23  Islanders shouldn't just get a discount with EZPass,

         24  maybe they should get a pass. Because we're not

         25  being treated the same way as the citizens of the
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          2  other boroughs.

          3                 Now, regarding transportation. First

          4  of all, MTA. I will explain to John, our conference

          5  together, that MTA to me reminds me of the Abbott

          6  and Costello Show. When I hear MTA, it reminds me

          7  when they used to say "Niagara Falls" and they go

          8  nuts.

          9                 MTA has been an absolute disgrace to

         10  Staten Islanders. We heard people talking about the

         11  third bus garage. Do you know how long that third

         12  bus garage has been discussed here on Staten Island?

         13  How long the MTA has been discussing a third bus

         14  garage? Since early 1970s. Over 30 years we've been

         15  hearing about a third bus garage. Last year

         16  Assemblyman Brodsky of the Corporations Committee in

         17  the State Assembly came and held a public hearing,

         18  and I asked the MTA the question: When are we going

         19  to get this third bus garage? And that was 2005, and

         20  he told us 2009, maybe. This is absurd. It will be

         21  40 years before we see this bus garage.

         22                 Now, what does that mean? That means

         23  that our transportation needs have been increasing.

         24  We have gotten a lot more buses. Not really what we

         25  need, but a lot more buses. But there's no place to
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          2  put them. So they're basically out in the street.

          3                 Now, in my community, which is an old

          4  community on the North Shore of Staten Island, the

          5  bus garage was in a community. These buses are

          6  outside because they can't fit them in their

          7  property. And during the winter they're idling. So,

          8  you know, another issue that was discussed was

          9  asthma. Well, I'm telling you that these bus garages

         10  idling in communities where residents live,

         11  certainly is not helping the health of those

         12  communities.

         13                 So, this is another thing, the MTA.

         14  The best thing, I know Madam Speaker spoke to our

         15  next Governor and I guess every other member spoke

         16  about our next Governor. Well, I'm going to speak to

         17  our next Governor too, and this is one of the major

         18  things. Day one everything changes. Well, we

         19  certainly hope that means the MTA membership

         20  changes.

         21                 What Michael brought up was what I

         22  really wanted to address, and that is about, and

         23  John, you mentioned it, too, the real thing here is,

         24  you know, I almost get the feeling that we're being

         25  blamed because we have so many cars on Staten
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          2  Island. But the reason we have so many cars on

          3  Staten Island is we had no choice. We had no

          4  transportation on Staten Island. So, don't blame us

          5  having cars for the reason that we have bad traffic.

          6  Now, the thing is, I happen to think that Michael

          7  and John, they were all probably addressing, the

          8  thing about we have to approve mass transit. Yes, we

          9  have to improve bus service. I actually think the

         10  major thing that we should be addressing is not just

         11  the North Shore Rail, and Michael has indicated

         12  that, too, it's not just the North Shore Rail. The

         13  North Shore Rail and the West Shore Rail connect it

         14  over the bridge. Because if we just do the North

         15  Shore Rail, and that has basically been a focus of

         16  discussion for the last decade, just do the North

         17  Shore Rail. It's going to be a huge investment, the

         18  money, with very little return. You're not going to

         19  get the maximum use out of the North Shore Rail. If

         20  you hook up the North Shore Rail with the West Shore

         21  Rail to the South Shore Rail and then hook it into a

         22  transit linked to New Jersey, I actually think

         23  that's a long-term investment, that is really,

         24  really going to help solve our investment problem

         25  and get people to stop using their cars as much,
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          2  because there will be a real link.

          3                 That's another thing about not being

          4  treated equal. You know, when they built subways, we

          5  were getting taxes to help build those subways,

          6  right? It never came to Staten Island.

          7                 So, now it's about time that we start

          8  getting some of the taxes from the rest of the City

          9  of New York to help us build our infrastructure.

         10                 The best thing about the

         11  transportation in the other four boroughs is the

         12  subway system, because you can get around. Here on

         13  Staten Island, we do not have that. We need this

         14  railroad link. And, you know, again, I just have to

         15  thank all of you for coming together and giving us

         16  this opportunity to express ourselves. So, thank

         17  you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         19  Assemblyman Lavelle. Thank you.

         20                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. And now

         22  we'll invite Meagan Deverequx and Sean Sweeney to

         23  join us at the witness table.

         24                 Following this panel we'll hear from

         25  Teresa Toro from the Tri-State Transportation
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          2  Campaign, Jonathan Peters from the College of Staten

          3  Island, and William Henderson from the New York City

          4  Transit Riders Council.

          5                 I will need to begin to ask the

          6  presenters to make it as brief and concise as

          7  possible. You are not on the hot seat, so you don't

          8  have to be here as long as the Department of

          9  Transportation was here. And we certainly welcome

         10  them being here, they have to answer our questions.

         11  To the extent that we have questions for you we'll

         12  ask you questions, but please be as concise as

         13  possible. I think earlier on we were hoping that

         14  we'd be able to afford like three minutes to make

         15  the comments. In the interest of making sure that we

         16  get everybody's comments tonight, I will have to

         17  limit it to two minutes. And to the extent that you

         18  have more to say afterwards, I certainly will be

         19  here afterwards to hear a second round from you. But

         20  we do want to get everyone in, at least for a first

         21  round. So, with that, Ms. Devereaux, please proceed.

         22                 MS. DEVEREAUX: Hi. I would ask to beg

         23  your indulgence on the time limit. The Borough

         24  President has worked for many years on these issues,

         25  and he does have quite a bit of background knowledge
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          2  that he wanted to address.

          3                 Unfortunately, the Borough President

          4  is not with us tonight, but he asked me to read the

          5  following statement on his behalf.

          6                 Let me begin by thanking Speaker

          7  Quinn, and our Council members for inviting us here

          8  tonight, to discuss traffic problems that are

          9  plaguing our Island. I also want to take this

         10  opportunity to thank New York City Department of

         11  Transportation, Commissioner Iris Weinshall. Under

         12  her active leadership, the Borough President has

         13  been able to bring some pioneering innovations to

         14  fruition, such as overhead street signage, new

         15  signals, and these innovations are now being

         16  duplicated throughout the rest of the City.

         17                 In addition, the Borough President

         18  wanted to commend our local Borough Commissioners,

         19  that John Joccio and Tom Curitore, they indeed

         20  worked tirelessly to ensure that Staten Islanders

         21  are always heard.

         22                 In the 1990s, the Borough President's

         23  Office created a multi-agency traffic task force,

         24  and the goal of this task force is to tackle some of

         25  the more urgent traffic problems that are facing our
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          2  Island. We were successful in implementing

          3  innovations, such as the rush hour parking down on

          4  Hylan Boulevard, improved steep signage and the

          5  punch through on Rockland Avenue and some others.

          6                 However, as our population continues

          7  to grow, traffic issues have to be addressed at the

          8  next level. A year ago, Mayor Bloomberg rose to this

          9  challenge by forming the Mayoral Traffic Task Force.

         10  And let's be frank here, we recognize that the

         11  entire City is facing a traffic problem. You only

         12  have to visit the other boroughs to see widespread

         13  gridlock. Traffic is clearly a Citywide issue.

         14                 However, on Staten Island the problem

         15  is uniquely compounded due to our lack of public

         16  transportation. With no subway connections, limited

         17  bus service and long waits, our citizens are forced

         18  to rely on their cars more so than any other City

         19  population.

         20                 It's very telling that in a borough

         21  with five percent of the City's population, we own

         22  18 percent of all the registered vehicles.

         23                 Some of the solutions to our problems

         24  are easy to discern. For example, since 1999, the

         25  Borough President has been asking for a limited
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          2  left-turn ban on Hylan Boulevard. The Mayor's Task

          3  Force worked to implement this idea, and while it is

          4  still being refined, Staten Island has already

          5  benefitted from improving flow along this corridor.

          6                 In addition, with Commissioner

          7  Weinshall's help, we are able to introduce Smith law

          8  left turn lanes of Hylan Boulevard between Bule

          9  (phonetic) and Midland Avenues. This offers drivers

         10  the opportunity to make left turns without rather

         11  than to tie up the intersections. It also improves

         12  access to local businesses.

         13                 This has been so successful that

         14  other parts of the City are now adopting the

         15  concept, and we hope to expand this idea to Richmond

         16  Avenue.

         17                 With regard to mass transportation,

         18  we have finally seen movement from the MTA in

         19  studying a project Mr. Molinaro developed in 1988 of

         20  bus connections to Hudson Bergen Light Rail. Staten

         21  Island is the only community within 50 miles of

         22  Manhattan that lacks a railroad to the City. A bus

         23  to the Hudson Bergen Station in Bayonne would

         24  service not only the 12,000 day-old New Jersey-bound

         25  commuters, but also provided real option for the
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          2  tens of thousands of people working in the City.

          3                 Unfortunately, other issues and

          4  solutions are not as straightforward. The issuance

          5  of street waivers is one such problem. For years it

          6  was the rule and not the exception that waivers were

          7  given to everyone and anyone who asked for one.

          8                 As a result, Staten Island lost

          9  countless opportunities for the left-turn lanes and

         10  roadway improvements.

         11                 Now, in fact, many builders and

         12  engineers have come to expect waivers as normal

         13  course of business. And when they're not granted by

         14  the Buildings Department or DOT, they then petition

         15  the Board of Standards and Appeals for the waivers.

         16  In other words, they shop around until an agency

         17  somewhere gives them the answer that they want.

         18                 This practice has got to stop. Staten

         19  Island has precious few opportunities left to put in

         20  desperately needed improvements.

         21                 Before the BSA issues any street

         22  waivers, there should automatically be a procedure

         23  in place whereby they first vent this matter through

         24  DOT. A classic example of this is the infamous

         25  corner of Hylan Boulevard and Midland Avenue.
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          2                 At this location a pharmacy was

          3  opened not only without a temporary certificate of

          4  occupancy, but the engineer also attempted to obtain

          5  a waiver in gaining the mandated left turn lane. The

          6  Borough President was actually told to leave the

          7  property when he went out there and brought this

          8  egregious situation to light. Only after many months

          9  of continued pressure were the lanes added. And

         10  today the intersection greatly improves traffic flow

         11  in the area.

         12                 A mandate ensuring street waivers are

         13  not haphazardly granted is an area in which the

         14  Council could lend its support to Staten Islanders.

         15  Too often traffic decisions are made in a vacuum

         16  without the Department of Parks, Preservation,

         17  Buildings and Planning talking to one another.

         18  Increasing capability and interagency cooperation is

         19  a must and we need the Council's help to achieve

         20  this goal.

         21                 Speaker Quinn, simple put, we must

         22  not waive on waivers any longer. And this is a

         23  message that the Borough President feels so strongly

         24  about, and one that we hear so often when we talk to

         25  people in the community, that he's actually starting
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          2  to market, if you will, and he's asked me to pass

          3  this along.

          4                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you. I may not

          5  wear that to the luncheon tomorrow.

          6                 MS. DEVEREAUX: We would also ask that

          7  the Council support the continuation of the Mayoral

          8  traffic task force. There remains a great deal of

          9  work to do. The Mayor's Task Force continues to be

         10  our best hope for popular change.

         11                 And, finally, the Council can help

         12  Staten Island by working with City Planning to

         13  insist that commercial cross-easements are provided

         14  wherever and whenever possible.

         15                 Currently, businesses do not have to

         16  provide such access. As a result, Staten Islanders

         17  are forced to drive in and out of adjoining parking

         18  lots from traffic from one store to another. This is

         19  clearly a problem along Richmond Avenue. The

         20  shoppers travel in between neighbor stores, such as

         21  Macy's, Mens Wear, Houston, Bed, Bath and Beyond,

         22  must drive onto the main avenue and make

         23  ridiculously sharp turns in order to reach their

         24  destination. If a simple cross-easement was provided

         25  between these properties, just think of the
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          2  congestion and risk that would be eliminated.

          3                 On the South Shore, we are facing a

          4  tremendous challenge. Intentionally 4 million square

          5  feet of retail space is now being contemplated. This

          6  will attract thousands of cars to an already

          7  congested area.

          8                 For example, on Page Acumen

          9  (phonetic) a new retail development is proposed, but

         10  there is no efforts underway to improve traffic

         11  flow.

         12                 The Borough President would like all

         13  of these commercial projects to be studied together

         14  and not in piecemeal. A piecemeal approach will

         15  simply condemn us to future traffic congestion

         16  problems.

         17                 Thank you, once again, for giving

         18  Staten Island the opportunity to bring our concerns

         19  to the City Council's attention.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         21                 Mr. Sweeney.

         22                 MR. SWEENEY: Thank you, Speaker

         23  Quinn, Chairman Liu and our Council delegation. I'd

         24  also like to thank agencies in attendance and their

         25  representatives. Traffic and transportation issues
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          2  have long been the major complaint of Staten Island.

          3  Lack of an adequate mass transit and the condition

          4  of our antiquated roadways have kept us at an

          5  ever-worsening crawl. A ray of hope has come to the

          6  form of the Mayor's Transportation Task Force. With

          7  the help of Commissioner Weinshall, our three local

          8  Councilmen, and the solution and ideas of so many

          9  frustrated Staten Islanders, we are beginning to see

         10  some real progress.

         11                 Areas where we have learned to expect

         12  congestion have been corrected and the relief is

         13  noticeable. Our local Commissioner of DOT, Tom

         14  Curitore, has been a Godsend. By sections such as

         15  Forest Avenue and Southend, that have been given

         16  left turn opportunities, Victory Boulevard and

         17  Jewett Avenue, long an area to avoid, is now

         18  manageable.

         19                 Forest Avenue and Bard Avenue have a

         20  simple extension of the median and now the improper

         21  turns in the strip mall have all but ceased. Van

         22  Duzer Street has been channelized, reducing

         23  incidents of speeding and unnecessary high-volume of

         24  accidents.

         25                 Speed boards on Henderson Avenue and
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          2  realigning of Bard Avenue have all had positive

          3  effects. Richmond Terrace, a roadway long forgotten

          4  by the Gods of asphalt, is now being visited by

          5  much-appreciated paving crews. Commissioner Curitore

          6  has been made aware of these issues, along with the

          7  men and women of DOT, he has responded.

          8                 Staten Island thanks all those who

          9  fought for and brought to reality, improved and

         10  increased ferry service.

         11                 As the Chairman of Community Board 1,

         12  I thank those who listened and went straight to work

         13  of improving our quality of life.

         14                 I tell my children that when we

         15  listen we learn. Listen, we need capital to continue

         16  reconfiguring intersections and to create efficient

         17  signal systems.

         18                 We need funding to build landfill

         19  roads and the cash for a fourth bus depot.

         20                 And finally, Chairman Liu, Staten

         21  Island needs very large check and the vision of a

         22  transportation Chairperson, to build the North Shore

         23  Passenger Railroad. Without this, traffic and

         24  transportation will never keep pace with our growing

         25  population.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

          4                 Thank you. Please come up to the

          5  witness table, Teresa Toro, Dr. Jonathan Peters and

          6  William Henderson.

          7                 Following this panel we will hear

          8  from Linda Baran from Staten Island Chamber of

          9  Commerce, Dee Vandenburg, Staten Island Taxpayers

         10  Association and Joes Valentin, also from Staten

         11  Island Taxpayers.

         12                 MS. TORO: Hello, Ms. Speaker and

         13  Chairman Liu. My name is Teresa Toro.  I'm from the

         14  Tristate Transportation Campaign. We're a regional

         15  advocacy group that's non-profit. And I want to

         16  thank you for bringing this hearing to Staten

         17  Island. I really admire your willingness to schedule

         18  this at Staten Islander's convenience. I've edited

         19  my comments, so I hope to make good time. That's

         20  something you don't hear on Staten Island, "making

         21  good time."

         22                 This fall, the Campaign released the

         23  results of a professionally conducted public opinion

         24  survey which asked New York City residents to rate

         25  the Bloomberg Administration on traffic problems.
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          2                 A whopping 83 percent of Staten

          3  Islanders surveyed said Mayor Bloomberg is doing a

          4  "fair to poor" job of reducing traffic jams and

          5  delays on City streets, highways and bridges, which

          6  reflects how bad traffic has become on Staten

          7  Island.

          8                 Staten Islanders also led the City in

          9  noting speeding and congestion as problems in their

         10  neighborhoods, as motorists cut through residential

         11  streets to avoid congestion.

         12                 Staten Island will remain gridlocked

         13  until mass transit is ambitiously planned and funded

         14  for the borough. With roughly half of our commuters

         15  heading elsewhere in the borough to get to work.

         16  Transit cannot just be Manhattancentric anymore. It

         17  must take workers where they need to go, whether

         18  it's on or off the Island.

         19                 Thus, Rapid Transit, which we've all

         20  talked about, is a real transit system. Staten

         21  Islanders need a multi-line Bus Rapid Transit system

         22  that makes it easier to get around the borough, not

         23  just off the borough.

         24                 Imagine a Staten Island with a real

         25  rapid transit system that connects to things that
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          2  take you where you want to go. A bus Rapid Transit

          3  system would also require that the express bus lane

          4  on the expressway be preserved and enforced to keep

          5  buses on schedule. If buses are reliable and quick,

          6  more people will leave their cars at home.

          7                 Ambitious large-scale planning is

          8  needed, in addition to the suggestions, like the

          9  North Shore Rail Line and the South Shore Ferry.

         10  Those projects won't move the masses of people that

         11  need to get out of their cars.

         12                 An important side bar -- is that two

         13  minutes?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes. Please wrap up.

         15                 MS. TORO: Well, thank you, Staten

         16  Island, and my full comments I will submit in

         17  writing. Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         19                 Dr. Peters. William Henderson, I'm

         20  sorry.

         21                 MR. HENDERSON: In the interest of

         22  time, I'm going to refer you to the comments that I

         23  passed to you. But my name is Bill Henderson. I'm a

         24  Staten Island resident, as well as Associate

         25  Director of New York City Transit Riders Council.
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          2  The Council was created in 1981 to represent the

          3  users of the New York City Transit system by action

          4  of the State Legislature. We are 15 members who are

          5  volunteer and serve with no pay.

          6                 Over the last 25 years, Staten Island

          7  has grown with the transportation system serving it.

          8  Transit is vital to the future of Staten Island,

          9  because it provides mobility for the residents, also

         10  because it takes the motorist off the road and onto

         11  more efficient means of transportation.

         12                 Staten Islanders will ride transit if

         13  you give them a chance. We have 10.6 percent

         14  increase in bus ridership over, since 1999 on Staten

         15  Island, we have three and a half increase in Staten

         16  Island railway use last year, and about an eight

         17  percent increase in the past year on Staten Island

         18  Railroad.

         19                 In the long run, major capital

         20  investments are critical. But the short run, what we

         21  need to do is look at the resources we have, that we

         22  have at hand, and I'd like to touch on three areas

         23  in reference to using some of the resources we have

         24  on-hand.

         25                 First of all, coordination, new
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          2  technologies and services and expansions of existing

          3  service.

          4                 Effective transit service on Staten

          5  Island requires a particularly high level of

          6  coordination between MTA New York City Transit and

          7  the City of New York.

          8                 Effective transit service on Staten

          9  Island requires a particularly high level of

         10  coordination between MTA New York City Transit and

         11  the City of New York.

         12                 Not only are Staten Islanders

         13  disproportionately dependent on bus transit, which

         14  is in turn dependent on the City's streets and

         15  roads, but a major destination for these buses is

         16  the City-operated Staten Island Ferry Terminal,

         17  serving 65,000 passengers traveling between

         18  Manhattan and St. George each weekday and providing

         19  a transfer point for the Staten Island Railway and

         20  the vast majority of the Borough's local bus lines.

         21                 We are pleased to see examples of

         22  coordination such as the Staten Island

         23  Transportation Task Force  and the Citywide Bus

         24  Rapid Transit study. The progress that these bodies

         25  have made shows the advantages of this kind of
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          2  collaboration, we want more of it in the future.

          3                 Second, we support uses of new

          4  technology, such as signal improvements on the

          5  Staten Island Railway and the planned traffic signal

          6  prioritization pilot program on Victory Boulevard,

          7  as well as new service models, such as the Bus Rapid

          8  Transit line that is planned for the Hylan Boulevard

          9  corridor.

         10                 There are, of course other examples

         11  of new technology and services that may be useful.

         12                 For example, a proof of payment fare

         13  system, which is used by a number of transit

         14  systems, could reduce the problems caused by "free

         15  riders" on the Staten Island Railway, while

         16  increasing the fares collected.

         17                 In terns of new services, we need to

         18  provide new options to access New Jersey's Hudson

         19  Bergen Light Rail system and to provide alternatives

         20  to the existing faltering private bus lines that are

         21  presently Staten Island's only direct link to

         22  employment centers such as Jersey City, even though

         23  interstate service is a new area for New York City

         24  Transit. Many of these improvements will require the

         25  City and NYC Transit to work together to realize
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          2  their full benefit.

          3                 Third, the increased population and

          4  transportation demand on Staten Island calls for

          5  more appropriate service.

          6                 The route structure on Staten Island

          7  needs to be carefully evaluated, as the travel

          8  patterns that prevailed in the 1960s, when the

          9  predecessors of many of the current routes were

         10  developed, have changed considerably in the past

         11  forty years.

         12                 Bus schedules also need to be

         13  evaluated to allow more access to the Staten Island

         14  Railway, which is truly our only rapid transit

         15  resource, from the South Shore.

         16                 When these actions are implemented,

         17  they yield results as can be seen in the popularity

         18  of expansions to limited stop service that have

         19  recently been implemented on the North Shore and in

         20  Mid-Island.

         21                 Improving transportation on Staten

         22  Island demands that we take full advantage of

         23  existing systems that work well, but also that we

         24  not be afraid to try new ideas.

         25                 Consider the peak direction rush hour
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          2  parking restrictions that were put into place on

          3  Hylan Boulevard. When they were proposed,

          4  "unenforceable chaos" was not an uncommon

          5  prediction, but the DOT and the NYPD have made the

          6  system work, and it has improved traffic flow. There

          7  may be missteps, and they should be corrected

          8  promptly. The worst course that we can take,

          9  however, is not to innovate, while the Island sinks

         10  into gridlock.

         11                 MS. BARAN: Good evening. I am Linda

         12  Baran, President and CEO of the Staten Island

         13  Chamber of Commerce. The Chamber is the largest

         14  business organization on the Island with

         15  approximately 900 members, more than 80 percent of

         16  which have ten employees or less. Our mission

         17  statement reads:, "The Chamber acts to improve the

         18  economic climate and expand business opportunities

         19  on Staten Island."

         20                 That statement is why the Chamber

         21  commissioned the College of Staten Island in 2004 to

         22  produce a report titled, "President Problems and

         23  future Solutions to Staten Island's Transportation

         24  System" Traffic is not only adversely affecting the

         25  quality-of-life for our residents; it is also
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          2  crippling our ability to attract first class jobs to

          3  the Island. The result is that our rapidly growing

          4  workforce is forced to commute off the Island to

          5  earn the wages necessary to live in New York City.

          6  It just exacerbates our traffic.

          7                 Here are some quick facts regarding

          8  Staten Island traffic:

          9                 1. Staten Island has the longest

         10  average commute in the nation - about 44 minutes

         11  each way. Staten Island residents also endure the

         12  largest amount of extreme commutes, 90 minutes or

         13  longer, in the nation.

         14                 2. Staten Island has the worst mass

         15  transit average commute in New York City, 68.6

         16  minutes each way, 14.4 minutes longer than the next

         17  worst mass transit commute in New York City, 54.2

         18  minutes for the Bronx. This time difference leads

         19  many Island residents abandon mass transit as a

         20  means of travel. Currently, 54% of the Island's

         21  commuters travel to work by automobile, highest in

         22  the City. Our roadways can simply not handle this

         23  volume of automobiles.

         24                 3. Staten Island was the

         25  fastest-growing county in the State of New York from
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          2  1990 to 2000. This growth is expected to continue

          3  out to 2030 and Staten Island is projected to have a

          4  2030 population of 630,000, an increase of 180,000

          5  from 2000.

          6                 About 5.7 of the nation's tolls are

          7  collected, and this is an important point, at four

          8  toll plazas on Staten Island. If Staten Island were

          9  a state, we would be the sixth highest toll

         10  producing state in the nation.

         11                 A significant amount of these

         12  resources, toll profits, that are generated in the

         13  Staten Island Corridor are diverted out of the

         14  corridor to pay for improvements in other areas of

         15  the New York City.

         16                 The point is, I sit on the Task Force

         17  and there are some primary things that we've been

         18  working on, and really what they are is we need more

         19  mass transit on Staten Island, as you've said. And

         20  we work very hard with the bus connection for Hudson

         21  Bergen Light Rail, and this is a seven-year project

         22  that the Borough President introduced. We've been

         23  working on it for two years, trying to get the MTA

         24  to respond to us, and it's ridiculous. We have gone,

         25  every borough, on the federal level, on the state
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          2  level, legislative, now we just went back to them

          3  again, we had a press conference because they cut

          4  the Red Can buses (phonetic). At this point in time

          5  we have no bus service for these people.

          6                 I wrote a letter to the Board

          7  Counsel, they didn't even respond and provide a

          8  temporary service for anybody.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, Ms. Baran,

         10  thank you. Those points are very well taken. In

         11  fact, your written testimony, and I apologize you

         12  only got through less than a third of it, but it's

         13  very comprehensive, and we will make sure it's

         14  completely added to the record. Thank you.

         15                 (The following written testimony was

         16  read into the record.

         17                 Remainder of Ms. Baran's testimony.)

         18                 5. Staten Island remains the only

         19  county in a 50 Mile radius of Manhattan without a

         20  rail connection to Manhattan.

         21                 These facts along with the report I

         22  mentioned above have been the platform for the

         23  Chamber's advocacy efforts to improve the mass

         24  transportation system here on Staten Island.

         25                 We have traveled to Albany and
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          2  Washington, D.C. on several occasions to "open the

          3  eyes" of elected officials and transportation

          4  agencies that Staten Island's infrastructure has

          5  reached the breaking point. We need significant

          6  investment, planning, and political will to fix our

          7  problems; and we need it now.

          8                 While I am proud of the efforts we

          9  have made and I do believe that we have made our

         10  problems better known, I am also disappointed that

         11  there have not been any new significant mass

         12  transportation projects despite our efforts.

         13                 I would like to commend Mayor

         14  Bloomberg for forming the Mayor's Transportation

         15  Task Force earlier this year and for inviting the

         16  Chamber to participate. As I am sure we will hear

         17  tonight, the task force has been working diligently.

         18  City Planning and NYCDOT should e applauded for

         19  their coordination and efforts this past year. The

         20  improvements they have made to Hylan Boulevard and

         21  numerous intersections were overdue, but are much

         22  appreciated.

         23                 The Chamber's primary focus is to

         24  improve mass transit on Staten Island, and in my

         25  opinion, that is where the Task Forces focus needs
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          2  to be in 2007 and beyond. Anyone can see that our

          3  roadways simply cannot handle additional cars.

          4                 We need to improve commute times and

          5  connect Staten Island to the region's transportation

          6  system. It is the only way we can attract companies

          7  to our Corporate Park and the Port Authority's

          8  Teleport. The first class office space exists here

          9  on Staten Island; but the jobs do not. They will not

         10  in the future unless companies see that they can get

         11  their workforce here in an efficient manner.

         12                 There are several projects that have

         13  been talked about for years, but need to be done

         14  now. I would like to briefly discuss them now.

         15                 The first is bus service to the 34th

         16  Street Hudson-Bergen Light Rail Station in Bayonne,

         17  NJ. This would present Staten Island commuters a

         18  mass transit option to the thousands of residents

         19  working in Hudson County, as well as ab alternative

         20  route into Manhattan.

         21                 I know this is going to sound crazy,

         22  but I can assure you it is true. This was first

         23  proposed approximately seven years ago by the

         24  Borough President's office here on Staten Island.

         25  Yes, seven years ago! The MTA has resisted providing
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          2  us with this transit option for SEVEN YEARS. But I

          3  am hopeful that recent efforts by the Chamber and

          4  our elected officials have made future resistance

          5  impossible.

          6                 We are anxiously awaiting the results

          7  of an MTA study on Bayonne bus service which we hope

          8  to see in the coming weeks. To paraphrase our

          9  Borough president, "I don't what there is to study,

         10  just take a look at all the license plates in the

         11  parking lots." (sic).

         12                 Over 75% of those cars per day are

         13  from Staten Island, and yet we have waited seven

         14  years to get a bus to drive two miles over a bridge

         15  to make one stop. I am sure you can appreciate our

         16  level of frustration with the MTA here on Staten

         17  Island.

         18                 Earlier this year, the Chamber

         19  submitted appropriation requests to our federal

         20  officials regarding reactivation of the North Shore

         21  Rail Line for passenger service.

         22                 This right-of-way needs to be studied

         23  further before we can request federal funding to

         24  re-construct the line. I am happy to report that we

         25  were awarded $3 million from the Senate and $250
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          2  thousand from the House of Representatives this past

          3  spring. This bill is presently in conference and we

          4  are hopeful that it will be finalized be fore the

          5  end of the year. The money will be allocated to the

          6  MTA to conduct the study, and it is imperative that

          7  it be finalized in a timely fashion. I look forward

          8  to working with the members of the Task Force to see

          9  that it remains on schedule.

         10                 Another project that several of our

         11  elected officials have been working on for years is

         12  the construction of a third bus depot on the South

         13  Shore of Staten Island.

         14                 Their efforts were rewarded last year

         15  when the funding was secured. I believe the

         16  construction is to commence early next year.

         17                 We cannot afford any more delays to

         18  this project, and there should be planning on how

         19  these extra buses can expand local and express bus

         20  service for the residents who call the South Shore

         21  of Staten Island home. These commuters have the

         22  documented longest travel day in the nation; often

         23  more than ninety minutes each way.

         24                 The first portion of the express bus

         25  lane on the Staten Island Expressway (SIE) has
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          2  sparked debate as to how the lane can best serve the

          3  Staten Island community going forward. The Chamber's

          4  main concern is how NYS DOT is responding to this

          5  debate and how it is negatively affecting the

          6  timeline on the second portion of the lane. When the

          7  lane first opened, we were told that phase two would

          8  be finalized by the end of 2008.

          9                 That second phase has now been pushed

         10  back to 2010-2011. While I understand that some

         11  unforeseen issues have arisen with this project, the

         12  construction of this lane is crucial to alleviating

         13  traffic on the, "world's longest parking lot" as our

         14  Mayor refers to it. The task force needs to address

         15  the future of the SIE in 2007 to ensure that there

         16  are no more delays.

         17                 The last project I will address is

         18  the introduction of Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) to both

         19  Staten Island and New York City. Earlier this year,

         20  Councilman McMahon requested that Staten Island be

         21  given a BRT corridor connecting it to Bayonne, NJ.

         22  His proposal made perfect sense. The Richmond Avenue

         23  corridor could support BRT and it could potentially

         24  end the seven plus years of frustration I just

         25  addressed by providing quick and efficient mass
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          2  transit to Bayonne, NJ.

          3                 Naturally, the Chamber supported his

          4  proposal and voiced that support at the public

          5  meeting held in June here on Staten Island.

          6                 The route proposed to us that night

          7  would travel along Hylan Boulevard and terminate at

          8  the 86th Street transit hub in Bay Ridge, Brooklyn.

          9  Both the Councilman's and my staff made a point to

         10  tell the planning team that the MTA already provided

         11  two different bus lines to 86th Street and none to

         12  Bayonne.

         13                 In our opinion, BRT would have a far

         14  greater impact on the Staten Island community by

         15  connecting us to Bayonne. We wee told that they

         16  would analyze Bayonne's potential, and that the BRT

         17  corridor would be formally be announced early in

         18  2007. So, I was caught off guard at the most recent

         19  task force meeting in September when we were told

         20  that the BRT corridors were being finalized in

         21  weeks, and that Hylan Boulevard to Bay Ridge would

         22  be the Staten Island corridor. This is the typical

         23  response we get from the MTA. Once again, I am sure

         24  you can sense my frustration. I do not know if the

         25  Council's Transportation Committee can get the MTA
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          2  to re-address this project, but any assistance you

          3  can provide would be appreciated.

          4                 I would like to thank the committee

          5  for taking the time to come out to Staten Island

          6  this evening and listening to our concerns. Our

          7  infrastructure is at a breaking point and we need

          8  all the help we can get, both monetary and

          9  politically.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 (End of written testimony of Ms.

         12  Baran.)

         13                 MS. VANDENBURG: Good evening. My name

         14  is Dee Vandenburg. I'm the President of the Staten

         15  Island Taxpayers Association. And so I don't get

         16  accused of not properly identifying myself, and I am

         17  also the head of the United Transportation Union for

         18  the Staten Island Railway. It doesn't get me a lot

         19  of Brownie points.

         20                 As for the North Shore Rail Line, we

         21  have testified at the Port Authority hearings, and I

         22  have a message for the City Council, if you have any

         23  say in this, because the MTA is a State agency, it

         24  is not a City agency. Please leave it in the hands

         25  of the Port Authority. We have enough headaches.
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 Richmond Terrace. No substructure

          4  under the roadbed. It's getting there, but it's not

          5  there. That is a truck traffic route. We've

          6  testified on the New York City DOT's Truck Traffic

          7  Commission. We need park-n-rides, and,

          8  unfortunately, the DOT just is giving away one of

          9  our park-n-rides down in Stapleton to apply for

         10  developer. The ugly word that the taxpayer likes to

         11  use. We need turning hours at all our traffic

         12  signals, especially the high-ride areas.

         13                 One of the things that we were told

         14  on certain cross corners, and we need property

         15  acquisition and eminent domain on all four corners,

         16  and the last project didn't look ahead, we got 15

         17  more years for that. There's nothing on some of

         18  these corners. Take it, let's go.

         19                 We need queuing lights in all

         20  directions. And as to poor Mr. Garcia-Duran, who has

         21  been listening to me for three nights running now,

         22  you need to add Board of Standards and Appeals and

         23  DEP to those meetings. The Staten Island Taxpayers

         24  wants every single City and State agency at the

         25  table now. Not tomorrow, not 15 years from now we
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          2  have funding, we need them all now, and that's the

          3  City and the State.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

          5                 MR. VALENTIN: Hi. My name is Joe

          6  Valentin. I want to thank everyone for being here,

          7  for showing that we are not one of the forgotten

          8  boroughs. That was usually a motto in Staten Island,

          9  because we were forgotten in Staten Island.

         10                 I just want to bring out a few

         11  points, a few areas that I'd like to see adjustments

         12  on. Richmond Avenue is one. If you go down Richmond

         13  Avenue from South Avenue, coming down from Victory

         14  Boulevard, going towards South towards -- I mean,

         15  Great Cuts (phonetic), before you get to Arthur

         16  Kills, you have four lanes going into three, then

         17  going into two, then into one. We have the old pass.

         18  That starts getting jammed up at 3:00, and it

         19  doesn't open up until about 7:30, 8:00. My wife

         20  works in Modell. She comes from South Avenue. It

         21  takes her a half hour, and you know from South

         22  Avenue to Arthur Kill, you're talking a half hour

         23  ride. It's a half hour ride because she gets caught

         24  in that mess. Then it backs up all the way down to

         25  the mall.
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          2                 I don't know how this City or DOT

          3  doesn't see the problems they brought there by

          4  making that turn going into the Expressway, the two

          5  lanes. Why can't they add the third lane on it,

          6  expand that bridge wider to get that traffic going?

          7  Because most of those cars are going in there, and

          8  that's what's causing the jam up. Then you drop

          9  those three lanes into the two lanes, which goes

         10  into the rest of the road, it fouls up and to the

         11  turning two lanes into one lane, into two lanes, to

         12  continue going towards Hylan Boulevard. And that

         13  whole jam up there is one. That's one that I could

         14  see.

         15                 The other one that I could see is

         16  actually travelers between South Avenue and Richmond

         17  Avenue. That's a very narrow road. I know you have a

         18  narrow road, this is on one. Do you know how many

         19  accidents can be caused by just one, because of pot

         20  holes. Adjustments there has to be done. We got the

         21  land there, let's use it.

         22                 Those are two points I think we

         23  should try to accommodate.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you so much,

         25  Mr. Valetin.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 Our next panel, Marie Ortiz, Theresa

          4  Tichio, Jeannine Barkowski, and we've been rejoined

          5  by Dr. Jonathan Peters. Please come up to the

          6  witness stand.

          7                 While they're coming up, the next

          8  panel to testify, Gregory Markow, from Community

          9  Board 3, Michael Morrell from the Westerleigh

         10  Improvement Society, Linda Eskenas from the North

         11  Shore Waterfront, and Beryl Thurman, also from the

         12  North Shore Waterfront Conservancy.

         13                 MS. BARKOWSKI: All right, I'll start.

         14  I can see by body language everybody is tired.

         15                 My name is Jeannine Barkowski, and

         16  I'm President of the Decker Avenue Civic

         17  Association, and you'll be getting my very short

         18  letter. Thank you.

         19                 Improving the traffic conditions on

         20  Staten Island is a monumental task. I can only offer

         21  suggestions as an ordinary citizen, a native

         22  islander, who has seen the changes in traffic

         23  patterns through 40 years. Roads like Forest Hill

         24  Road, Rockland Avenue, going through the Greenbelt,

         25  one-lane streets. Why? I mean, how many years are we
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          2  going to go through this?

          3                 The streets that access the Staten

          4  Island Expressway are congested. For example, Royal

          5  Oak onto Victory Boulevard is almost impossible to

          6  enter going onto Victory Boulevard, when the schools

          7  are beginning or ending P.S. 29 and St. Teresa's.

          8                 Now, you want to know why do drivers

          9  use these streets? Why are we going through Royal

         10  Oak to get onto Victory Boulevard? Why? Because we

         11  want to avoid the Staten Island Expressway. It is

         12  congested from Victory Boulevard to through Slossen

         13  Avenue. You just can't get on it.

         14                 So, the great number of trucks cannot

         15  make the incline. We all know that. And they can't

         16  go into higher gear, so they use low gear and that,

         17  of course, is traffic.

         18                 I'm a North Shore resident but I have

         19  had to travel on occasion to South Shore, and their

         20  traffic problems are evident on Amboy Road, Arthur

         21  Kill Road. These are also one-lane streets which

         22  cannot keep the flow of traffic moving at certain

         23  heavy volume times of the day.

         24                 One positive change concerning

         25  traffic is the no-left turn on Hylan Boulevard and
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          2  the green arrow turn signals. There should be more

          3  of them in high-traffic areas, along with the turn

          4  on red signal signs, to keep the flow of traffic

          5  moving.

          6                 One more suggestion to stem the heavy

          7  volume of traffic is the return of a light rail, and

          8  we've already discussed that. So you know, you can

          9  read the rest. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         11  Ms. Borkowski.

         12                 DR. PETERS: Good evening, Speaker

         13  Quinn. I'm Dr. Jonathan Peters and I am an Associate

         14  Professor of Finance here at The College of Staten

         15  Island. And I am also a research fellow at the

         16  University Transportation Research Center, Region 2

         17  of the USDOT.

         18                 I'm also the co-author of the Staten

         19  Island Chamber of Commerce's Report on the Staten

         20  Island Transportation System.

         21                 I am not going to give my full notes

         22  here, but I put them into the record. I think the

         23  reality is, and I don't know if it's been echoed

         24  here, but the reality is we're dealing with a

         25  community with the worst commuting in the nation.
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          2                 I know that, Councilman Liu, that you

          3  are in Queens, and Queens, we're in a drag race of

          4  whose got the worst. It's tick and tock, but I think

          5  we've got it. I think we've got the worst because we

          6  have the longest average commute in the nation by

          7  Bronx and Queens; we have the longest and greatest

          8  number of super commuters in the nation who spend

          9  more than 90 minutes each way going to work, and

         10  that's 11.8 percent of the people. Much greater, 66

         11  percent greater than Queens at 7.1 percent, and we

         12  also have the longest mass transit commute in the

         13  City. Our mass transit commute one way is 68.6

         14  minutes, and that's from the Census Bureau.

         15                 But the reality is we deal with a

         16  very, very important problem in terms of structure,

         17  the infrastructure we have in this community, and

         18  the reality is we're not going to solve this. And

         19  while I applaud the Council and the Mayor for

         20  stepping up in terms of working on this issue, there

         21  is long-term needs for this community.

         22                 In particular, we need to address the

         23  lack of mass transit infrastructure, and obviously

         24  connections to Hudson-Bergen Light Rail,

         25  revitalizing the North Shore Rail Line. While
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          2  they're expensive, they certainly are necessary.

          3                 And the reality is, is that the MTA

          4  does a much better job from moving people from, say,

          5  Stanford, Connecticut, or from Hicksville, Long

          6  Island.

          7                 These people move into Manhattan at

          8  30, 35 miles an hour. And the people of Long Island

          9  come in 40 miles an hour.

         10                 Pity the poor X-10 riding in from

         11  Castleton Avenue on Staten Island. They have a 113

         12  minute commute. They leave at 8:06 in the morning at

         13  9.19 miles an hour. And that's just not acceptable

         14  in terms of national standards.

         15                 And reality is we're not prepared in

         16  terms of infrastructure for the future of this

         17  community. The plans for 186,000 people on Staten

         18  Island by 2030, and we just don't have the

         19  infrastructure in place. And we're missing things

         20  like basic items, such as paved bus stops.

         21  Thirty-two percent of the bus stops are not paved.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         24  Dr. Peters.

         25                 Ms. Ortiz.
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          2                 MS. ORTIZ: Good evening, honorable

          3  City Council members, Speaker Quinn, fellow

          4  citizens.

          5                 My name is Marie Ortiz, and I've been

          6  a resident of Staten Island all my life. My concerns

          7  go beyond the transportation problem. As we know,

          8  the transportation problem and the traffic problem

          9  manifest other problems that we are going to be

         10  facing because of it. Mainly the quality of life on

         11  Staten Island and the safety of our health issues,

         12  as well.

         13                 What I would like to request is those

         14  issues are looked into completely too, okay? Taking

         15  into consideration the cancer rate here on Staten

         16  Island, the problems we have with the traffic adding

         17  to those statistics, as well as the possibility of

         18  NASCAR, how that is going to impact upon the quality

         19  of life here on Staten Island, and for that I thank

         20  you.

         21                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much

         23  for your very good testimony.

         24                 Ms. Tichio.

         25                 MS. TICHIO: Good evening, everybody.
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          2  My name is Theresa Tichio, and I am President of an

          3  organization known as Staten Island Citizens Against

          4  The Track.

          5                 I want to thank everybody for letting

          6  us come here tonight and talk about a very crucial

          7  problem that we do have on the Island. Like

          8  everybody else has been saying the same thing, we

          9  need help on Staten Island. Our infrastructure,

         10  everything has gone wrong.

         11                 We ask the Council to really take it

         12  into consideration, Staten Island. It's a lot of

         13  funds for new hospitals, for new bridges, for new

         14  highways for our children, for parks and we can't

         15  sit back anymore. It's taking a long time. I'm a

         16  resident of Staten Island, and I've seen a lot of

         17  people get sick on this Island. And there's a

         18  reason. It's got to be because of the pollution from

         19  Jersey. Our garbage dump that's here, and Staten

         20  Island was known as "the garbage dump," and burns,

         21  and that's terrible. We want to be known as a

         22  beautiful island that we are.

         23                 And I want to thank you again. So,

         24  please, please, take into consideration, see how

         25  much help we can get. Thank you very much,
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          2  everybody.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you so much.

          4  Thank you for joining us today. We now have Gregory

          5  Markow, Michael Morrell, Linda Eskenas, and Beryl

          6  Thurman. Please approach the witness table. And our

          7  next panel will consist of Roy Moskowitz, Margaret

          8  Flynn, Harvey Schwartz and Joe Pesce.

          9                 Please proceed.

         10                 MR. MARKOW: Good evening.

         11  Strategically public transportation of Staten Island

         12  must be improved. Non-car and non-truck alternatives

         13  must be planned for and developed.

         14                 Develop the North Shore Rail Line.

         15  Via rail connect North Shore Rail Line to South

         16  Shore Rail Line. This connection can occur on the

         17  West Shore of Richmond Avenue. Richmond Avenue

         18  provide access to shopping and new Fresh Kills and

         19  Brookdale Parks.

         20                 Facilitate traffic from Staten Island

         21  to Manhattan. Construct a subway tunnel from Staten

         22  Island to Manhattan or perhaps Brooklyn. The

         23  objective would be to provide higher-speed rail

         24  transport from far points of Staten Island to

         25  Manhattan's subway system.
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          2                 One should know that the Staten

          3  Island Railway Express travels from St. George to

          4  Great Kills in 18 minutes. Adding another ten

          5  minutes to get to Manhattan via subway.

          6                 How do we pay for the aforementioned?

          7  Federal transportation funds, the New York City debt

          8  offering, the New York State debt offering, capital

          9  costs could be mitigated by eliminating all express

         10  buses and the Staten Island Ferry. You won't need

         11  them anymore.

         12                 Now, this is not a new idea. This

         13  idea was promoted by the Citizens for the Tunnel

         14  Commission in 1907. This idea is 100 years old. It's

         15  not my idea. It's no one else's idea, it was from

         16  100 years ago. I think we've got to start addressing

         17  this.

         18                 My last request is tactical and

         19  somewhat selfish, but I think we need to move truck

         20  traffic off of Staten Island as soon as possible.

         21                 The Initiative of Cross Harbor Great

         22  Tunnel, which died because of opposition in Long

         23  Island. I think we need to revive that Initiative. A

         24  lot of money, a lot of time was spent on that

         25  Initiative. It would take all truck traffic, all the
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          2  Staten Island roads, Staten Island bridges and

          3  Manhattan roads and bridges.

          4                 I would like you to consider

          5  dedicating Express Bus lanes on Hylan Boulevard,

          6  Father Capitan Boulevard (phonetic) and Brady Pond

          7  Avenue (phonetic), Verrazano Bridge and the BQE

          8  coming back to Staten Island for the evening hours.

          9  People spend about two hours commuting from Staten

         10  Island to Manhattan via something called ostensibly

         11  "Express Bus."

         12                 Also enforce, also enforce the HOV

         13  lane restrictions. Far too often at the Battery

         14  Tunnel we see individuals showing the police

         15  officers placards or flashing a badge for single

         16  occupant vehicles, and being allowed to proceed

         17  through the tunnel.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Markow.

         21                 MR. MORRELL: Michael Morrell,

         22  President of the Westerleigh Improvement Society.

         23  We're a civic association here on the North Shore of

         24  the Island.

         25                 I'd like to thank Madam Speaker and
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          2  Chairman Liu for having this hearing tonight, and

          3  especially our three Council members from Staten

          4  Island.

          5                 I can't tell you how many times at

          6  our civic have Mike McMahon or Jim Oddo on speed

          7  dial toward some sort of a traffic issue, but I know

          8  that many of the transportation task force

          9  correction, the short-term ones that were handled in

         10  the last few months, were located on the North Shore

         11  in these intersection redesigns. And what we'd like

         12  to emphasize is that they not be etched in stone.

         13                 These are changes in intersection

         14  traffic patterns that should be looked at after the

         15  trial period has gone on for several months.

         16                 I'd like to take this opportunity to

         17  thank Tom Curitore, the Borough Traffic

         18  Commissioner, who is Mr. On-the-spot. He is

         19  fantastic. He responds within 24 hours of your

         20  request, and he meets with not only civics but also

         21  the residents in the commercial owners in the areas

         22  affected.

         23                 To echo what Assemblyman John Lavelle

         24  mentioned earlier about the North Shore Rail, I

         25  don't want to get nostaligic but I had the
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          2  opportunity to ride that train back when it closed

          3  53 years ago, but it was a 15-minute ride from

          4  Arlington to St. George, and just a handful of

          5  stops, but it served the mass transit needs of all

          6  of the North Shore.

          7                 But I think as John pointed out, it

          8  has to be hooked up with some sort of links to the

          9  rest of Staten Island and also to New Jersey.

         10                 Someone told me a long time ago, the

         11  Bayonne Bridge was designed to handle rail traffic,

         12  it's capable of doing so. So it could be designed in

         13  the overall plan. And I would like to thank you once

         14  again for having this hearing. Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Morrell.

         17                 MS. ESKENAS: Thank you. Linda

         18  Eskenas, the Northshore Waterfront Greenbelt, and

         19  Preservation League of Staten Island, 4 Boros

         20  Neighborhood Preservation Alliance and West Brighton

         21  Restoration.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's a lot.

         23                 MS. ESKENAS: Transportation is an

         24  issue that affects everybody's life on Staten

         25  Island, particularly because transportation is in
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          2  its infancy on Staten Island. Successful economies

          3  and stable communities have to have reliable

          4  transportation, and we don't have it.

          5                 We have some of the finest cultural

          6  institutions in the country on Richmond Terrace and

          7  port historic sites, and we have no train. We have

          8  no train and trains travel is provided to the rest

          9  of the Island free of charge.

         10                 The S 40 bus is a disaster along our

         11  shore road at Richmond Terrace. It takes, a 12 and a

         12  half minute ride to the ferry can take an hour,

         13  making people late for work every day.

         14                 In fact, if anybody has to wait one

         15  hour, it's simply destructive to our future.

         16                 There is a leak that has been coming

         17  up on Alaska Street from the pavement for one year

         18  and nothing has been done.

         19                 The carcinogenic-polluting buses that

         20  we get on Staten Island are health hazards. Staten

         21  Island pays more than its share of taxes, and we

         22  need pollution-free new buses.

         23                 Of course, everybody knows the

         24  Waterfront Historic Houses, and the Waterfront

         25  walkway from the ferry along the shore are some of
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          2  the greatest jewels of modern urban planning.

          3                 We've been working for 20 years to

          4  get a greenway trail, to go from the ferry terminal

          5  to the sacred sites of West Brighton. This would

          6  bring an unprecedented economic and cultural

          7  renaissance, and we still don't have it after 20

          8  years. It would cost very little.

          9                 Richmond Terrace, this is an

         10  important point, Richmond Terrace is a shore road,

         11  it was once an Indian foot path and one of our

         12  earliest, it's one of our greatest assets along the

         13  waterfront. It is not for trucks. It's not a truck

         14  route for polluters. This is probably the most

         15  wasted waterfront in the country, and it's New York,

         16  the center of the world.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please wrap up, Ms.

         18  Eskenas.

         19                 MS. ESKENAS: Okay.

         20                 There are federal funds for highways

         21  that New York doesn't use. That Expressway, which

         22  was built for traffic, needs to be expanded and

         23  maybe an elevation.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Thank

         25  you.
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          2                 Ms. Thurman.

          3                 MS. ESKENAS: There should be no more

          4  speeding down our residential streets, and

          5  destroying our future. Thank you.

          6                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          8                 MS. THURMAN: I'm not going to read my

          9  entire speech because it's just too long.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But please submit it

         11  into the testimony.

         12                 MS. THURMAN: I did.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

         14                 MS. THURMAN: What I would like to say

         15  is that we are --

         16                 SPEAKER QUINN: Can you identify

         17  yourself for the record?

         18                 MS. THURMAN: Beryl Thurman, North

         19  Shore Waterfront Conservancy of Staten Island, and

         20  also representative of Staten Island Taxpayers on

         21  the North Shore.

         22                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.

         23                 MS. THURMAN: One of the things that I

         24  would like to emphasize is we do have a tremendous

         25  problem in truck trafficking through residential
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          2  streets, and we have constantly complained about it

          3  over the years. It has been the cause of not only

          4  branches being taken down, the wiring being taken

          5  down. It's also caused me personally to have

          6  property damage when my sidewalk was broken in 2003.

          7  I have repeatedly asked for assistance in regards to

          8  something being done to reduce the truck traffic

          9  from the DOT, NYPD, and also with the MTA, using our

         10  residential streets as shortcuts as well, and the

         11  Atlantic Express buses.

         12                 Port Richmond and West Brighton are

         13  surrounded by industrial sites, between the two

         14  depots, and it doesn't take much for there to be a

         15  back-up on Richmond Terrace to cause that traffic to

         16  come into the residential neighborhoods and cause

         17  havoc.

         18                 So, with that in mind, I brought

         19  pictures, but I don't have time to show them all.

         20                 SPEAKER QUINN: You gave them to us.

         21                 MS. THURMAN: I gave you one. That's

         22  on my sidewalk. That's what it looks like now. And I

         23  also brought new letters over the years, and this

         24  has been going on since 1998, up until now, with me

         25  writing letters back and forth to elected officials.
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          2  Assemblyman Lavelle has received letters, my

          3  Councilman's, Borough President's Office, former

          4  Councilman, the former Assemblman, all about the

          5  truck traffic and how it impacts our quality of

          6  life. And we really need somebody to come in and to

          7  do something.

          8                 That intake bus depot has 330 buses

          9  on that site. It was only built for 70. So, they're

         10  killing us. Thank you.

         11                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         13                 MS. ESKENAS: Just one sentence. This

         14  morning I looked at a tractor trailer that took up

         15  an entire westbound lane.

         16                 Five school bus had to veer into

         17  oncoming traffic.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         19                 MS. ESKENAS: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Your point is well

         21  taken.

         22                 Roy Moskowitz, Margaret Flynn, Harvey

         23  Schwartz and Joe Pesce.

         24                 And the next panel will consist of

         25  Christina Casale, Pearl Minsky, Louise Lane and
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          2  Chris Coppa.

          3                 Mr. Moskowitz, please proceed.

          4                 MR. MOSKOWITZ: Okay. Calling New York

          5  City "The City that never sleeps" is a misnomer.

          6  Commuters on the often-forgotten borough of Staten

          7  Island are put to bed early by express bus schedules

          8  that function as de facto curfews, with service from

          9  Manhattan ending on many lines before 9:00 p.m., and

         10  on some before 6:00 p.m. And Manhattan-bound service

         11  often ceasing after morning rush hour. Weekend

         12  service is very limited for the very few lines

         13  providing such. Express buses also generally run

         14  much less frequently than the train service the

         15  other boroughs are blessed with.

         16                 Buses that end early in at least one

         17  direction and/or provide limited or no weekend

         18  service, including the 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17,

         19  19 and 31 X.

         20                 Also some other ideas, in terms of

         21  improving bus schedule that would be no cost, almost

         22  every bus servicing mid-Island or the South Shore

         23  off peak turns right at Victory and Richmond without

         24  picking up passengers on the way to perform the

         25  Manhattan runs. Many of you made that turn on your
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          2  way to this forum.

          3                 It wouldn't cost money to allow these

          4  people to pick up passengers only at Victory and

          5  Richmond, nor delay buses to discharge passengers at

          6  two Manhattan stops, one downtown and the other at

          7  the first Midtown stop for riders returning to

          8  Staten Island.

          9                 Staten Islanders often have to make

         10  split-second decisions from transportation options

         11  when their regular transit option is not available

         12  and you call the MTA Hot Line. If you have 30

         13  seconds to make a decision, you cannot afford to

         14  listen to a recording that you can't bypass.

         15                 Everybody has heard, "If you see

         16  something, say something." By that time you could

         17  have made a bad decision and have to wait an extra

         18  hour. So, I think that's something that can easily

         19  be taken care where you're just given a bypass.

         20                 The MTA's website --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please wrap up.

         22                 MR. MOSKOWITZ: Yes. The MTA's website

         23  will have schedules available not in PDF form but in

         24  HDML. If you hvae a phone browser, you cannot access

         25  it. 3-1-1 operators should have scheduled
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          2  information when the MTA hot line is not available,

          3  and they should have Internet access, which

          4  Bloomberg thought they did, and when he found out

          5  they didn't, we don't want them shopping at work.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay, thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 MR. SCHWARTZ: I'm Harvey Schwartz.

          9  I'm from the South Shore of Staten Island, Rossville

         10  section. In the past, after making traffic and

         11  safety suggestions, some of my ideas have been

         12  implemented. I'm not saying they were done because I

         13  offered them, only that they were acted upon, so

         14  they must have been somewhat relevant.

         15                 Having buses move to the left when

         16  approaching the toll booths after going over the

         17  Verrazano Bridge. Thus, they would feed directly

         18  into the bus lane on 278 West without cutting across

         19  traffic.

         20                 On two separate occasions, I had

         21  contacted and received a response from Borough

         22  President Molinaro's Office, to recommend that fresh

         23  solid lines be painted on the approach merge to the

         24  Outerbridge Crossing where Korean War Veteran's

         25  Highway merges with 440 South traffic. If you can
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          2  picture that. Although it was taken care of, it's

          3  still a problem. Irresponsible drivers continue to

          4  dangerously cut across the two merging lanes from

          5  440 South, to get to the new Home Depot Shopping

          6  Center.

          7                 At this merge, would it be possible

          8  to put those orange flexible pipes, like the ones

          9  you have on the Verrazano Bridge as you enter the

         10  lanes of the Belt Parkway, so drivers would not be

         11  able to cut across two lanes at a high-merging

         12  speed.

         13                 More clearly defined -- I don't know

         14  if you can picture what I'm talking about.

         15                 SPEAKER QUINN: Yes.

         16                 MR. SCHWARTZ: More clearly defined

         17  signs on the Korean Veteran's Highway would probably

         18  be very useful and helpful for directing people to

         19  the shopping center. On this roadway, the sign

         20  should clearly state "the last exist in New York"

         21  and "exit for shopping center." If someone

         22  accidentally or intentionally makes the "mistake,"

         23  and I put that in quotes, and is forced over the

         24  Outerbridge Crossing, they will quickly learn their

         25  lesson.
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          2                 Better use of the bus lanes on Staten

          3  Island Expressway, especially on crowded weekends.

          4  Why is there strong objection to this? Since the

          5  lanes are not utilized on Saturday or Sunday, their

          6  usage would be a wonderful opportunity to alleviate

          7  some traffic. For what logical reason -- oh, I can't

          8  believe that. I'm going to say this really fast. You

          9  gave people a few extra seconds.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please wrap up.

         11                 MR. SCHWARTZ: I am.

         12                 For what logical reason should these

         13  empty lanes go unused? It will make weekend driving

         14  more relaxing and less stressful.

         15                 Now, this is very, very important. A

         16  left-turn signal. I wrote to you and you just wrote

         17  back to me, I received another letter today from Ms.

         18  Weinshall who was here today, talking about a

         19  left-turn signal on Arthur Kill Road getting onto

         20  440 North. Because traffic comes from the opposite

         21  way, and after it there's no chance to come.

         22                 I'm going to leave you my notes, all

         23  right?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         25                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.
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          2                 Give your notes to the Sergeant. That

          3  would be great. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          5                 Christina Casale, Pearl Minskey,

          6  Louise Lane and Chris Coppa. Please come to the

          7  witness table.

          8                 Following this panel we'll hear from

          9  Jerry Mulnick, Ted Goldfarb, Robert DeBiase and

         10  Steve Lauria.

         11                 Thank you for joining us. Please

         12  proceed.

         13                 MS. CASALE: Hi. I'm Christina Casale

         14  from Staten Island, and greetings to our Staten

         15  Island representatives. Okay, I'll probably be

         16  pretty brief.

         17                 Someone mentioned before about the

         18  three-headed monster that exists in Staten Island,

         19  our traffic. There was a slight mention of the big

         20  elephant in the room, that is, what is going to

         21  happen if the NASCAR Stadium comes to Staten Island.

         22                 All right, my point is that this will

         23  affect the horrible situation that we have right

         24  now, which has been described.

         25                 SPEAKER QUINN: Right.
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          2                 MS. CASALE: Let's compare Giant

          3  Stadium that exists in New Jersey right now, that is

          4  fed by the New Jersey Turnpike that has 12 lanes.

          5  Route 3 that has six lanes, I think. Route 17,

          6  another six lanes. That's 24 lanes all together. The

          7  proposed NASCAR Stadium has 5,000 more seats and we

          8  are living on an island that is fed by bridges only.

          9  This is insane. Anyone who ever would see to approve

         10  this is insane.

         11                 Now, I think it was Chairman Liu, I'm

         12  not sure if it was Chairman Liu, that mentioned that

         13  business development is very good. It's wonderful.

         14  But it doesn't supersede the needs of the community.

         15                 Okay, one more point. Not only will

         16  traffic increase. The danger, the fact that

         17  emergency vehicles will not be able to service it

         18  and get to communities, not to mention the stadium,

         19  it will be a total shut down on the Island. Someone

         20  having an heart attack will die. Someone who has an

         21  asthma attack will die. That's my point, okay?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         23  Ms. Casale.

         24                 MS. MINSKY: My name is Pearl Minsky.

         25  I represent myself and the thousands of people who
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          2  don't represent anything, except themselves.

          3                 We've been talking about a lot of

          4  grandiose plans of putting in railway systems and

          5  improving road systems. There are two things I want

          6  to mention that are very, very simple; and that is,

          7  left-turn signals and right turns on red light where

          8  it's safe.

          9                 And Councilman McMahon can testify, I

         10  sent him letters about a left-turn signal on South

         11  Avenue going on to Martin Luther King Expressway,

         12  and similar letters have gone back and forth.

         13  They're doing a study.

         14                 Now, when I lived in Brooklyn 20

         15  years ago, Brooklyn was tough. If we needed a street

         16  light, we put our baby carriages right across the

         17  street and dog-gonnit, we got that street light

         18  immediately. Now all we get is hearings, and we sit

         19  here listening to people congratulating each other

         20  for the improvements that they've done, without

         21  getting down to the very basic small things that

         22  don't require big budgets.

         23                 So, please give us some relief there.

         24                 I also want to add something to

         25  Teresa Toro's speech, because she didn't get around
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          2  to saying it.

          3                 I think that the open and electronic

          4  expressway, EZPass will be a big help.  Getting

          5  everyone into Brooklyn today is torture. I think it

          6  would be much easier to have that, and it would

          7  certainly move the traffic much better.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Ms.

         10  Minsky.

         11                 Jerry Mulnick, Ted Goldfarb, Robert

         12  DeBiase and Steve Lauria, please join us at the

         13  witness table.

         14                 And following them we will hear from

         15  our final panel, Karen D'Aloia, Donna Bellmier, and

         16  Robert Bendel.

         17                 Good evening, gentlemen. Thank you

         18  for joining us.

         19                 Please proceed Mr. Mulnick.

         20                 MR. MULNICK: Hi. I'm Jerry Mulnick.

         21  I've been in Staten Island for 29 years.

         22                 With the increasing number of cars

         23  and trucks each year, Staten Island's streets, roads

         24  and highways are a mess, and it's getting worse. But

         25  it doesn't have to be that way. And we don't need to
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          2  destroy the Greenbelt to make improvements. In fact,

          3  we don't even need any new roads at all. We need

          4  smarter roads.

          5                 We already spoke about Hylan

          6  Boulevard Improvements, and the left-hand turn lane,

          7  and that's great. And another thing is the no

          8  parking during rush hour on the right-hand lanes,

          9  and that's great, but we need better enforcement.

         10  Many times we're driving along there and cars just

         11  stop. You know, they're just going to run and get a

         12  cup of coffee and it screws up all the traffic and

         13  cause accidents.

         14                 Everybody knows where the general

         15  post office is. I find it amazing that the north-

         16  and southbound left turn lanes on Manor Road at

         17  Victory Boulevard have traffic lights with no green

         18  arrows. This is a very busy intersection, and makes

         19  it also impossible to make a left turn in either

         20  direction on Manor Road onto Victory Boulevard. This

         21  forces drivers to make their left turns completely

         22  when the light turns red.

         23                 So, all the turning lights on Staten

         24  Island have to have green arrows, and this will

         25  promote safety and speed up traffic.

                                                            129

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 Willow Road East, that's the service

          3  road of the Martin Luther King Expressway, 440

          4  North, at Forest Avenue has three lanes, a left turn

          5  only, a through lane only, and a right lane. When

          6  the westbound Forest Avenue traffic backs up under

          7  the Expressway, cars in the left turning lane can't

          8  move. That's because they're going to be making a

          9  left onto Willow Road West, or the next street,

         10  which is Richmond Avenue. So what happens is, the

         11  experienced drivers know that they've got to get

         12  into the straight lane, the through lane, and make

         13  an illegal left turn to get around. It's perfectly

         14  safe because the left-hand turn lane has to turn

         15  left. But the Department of Transportation is

         16  dragging their behind in doing something. I've been

         17  in contact with them several months ago, and they

         18  told me that it can't be done, it can't be done.

         19  They never gave an explanation of why. Because I

         20  know it can be done because we go through it all the

         21  time, but we do it illegally. I think they have to

         22  wake up.

         23                 Just 20 seconds, because I wrote this

         24  for the three minutes that we were allotted.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please wrap up.
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          2  Sure.

          3                 MR. MULNICK: Okay? I'm not going to

          4  read the whole thing, but The Clove Road-Richmond

          5  Road-Hylan Boulevard exit is obsolete. We need a new

          6  Hylan Boulevard exit onto Narrows Road South. That

          7  will skim off a lot of traffic.

          8                 And finally, the Hylan Boulevard exit

          9  from the Verrazano Bridge should have a left lane

         10  only, you know, a left lane turning lane for that

         11  opening. Because cars are going to go straight onto

         12  Narrows Road North, they don't have to be in that

         13  lane, and there should be a left-turn lane on the

         14  overpass, there should be three lanes, one going

         15  northbound towards Fort and two going towards Hylan

         16  Boulevard, the left lane for left turns only.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Mulnick.

         19                 MR. MULNICK: Thank you.

         20                 Mr. Goldfarb.

         21                 MR. GOLDFARB: Ted Goldfarb, a

         22  resident of Staten Island. Most of the witnesses

         23  addressed the large issues, but I feel that by

         24  addressing a lot of very small cost-beneficial

         25  improvements, a lot of improvement can be made in
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          2  General Traffic Law of Staten Island, and I'm just

          3  going to highlight some areas around here, because

          4  it is where I live, and use most of the time. But

          5  this can be multiplied across the Island.

          6                 Coming into Staten Island from Forest

          7  Hill Road tonight, there were dozens of cars waiting

          8  to exit. The traffic light, maybe you have to wait

          9  three or four changes. But at 3:00 in the morning,

         10  no one is coming out of Staten Island, College of

         11  Staten Island, why can't there be a time on the

         12  traffic lights. This includes the Petrides School,

         13  this includes Seaview Hospital on Brielle Avenue,

         14  this includes the Staten Island Mall, this includes

         15  a lot of shopping centers.

         16                 There isn't one traffic light on

         17  Staten Island that has a time that I've ever seen,

         18  and I can't see why that can't be changed.

         19                 Lane markings. Going south on Forest

         20  Hill Road and Richmond Hill Road, years ago there

         21  were no lane markings, all the residents knew the

         22  roads and they made it into three lanes, a left-turn

         23  lane, a forward, a straight-through lane and a

         24  right-turn lane. DOT comes and marks it with two

         25  lanes, one for left turn and one for straight and

                                                            132

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  right, so now you went from three lanes down to two,

          3  you increase the traffic congestion at that

          4  intersection. And that's also applicable to many

          5  other intersections.

          6                 Again, timing at traffic lights is a

          7  vital, important thing. Timing this northbound on

          8  Forest Hill Road from the mall towards the

          9  expressway, you have to wait five or six traffic

         10  light changes to get through. Sometimes I'll make a

         11  right turn on Rockland Avenue, and there's no cars

         12  waiting, okay? So, adding 20, 30 seconds on Forest

         13  Hill Road, 20 seconds less on Rockland Avenue,

         14  alleviate problems like that.

         15                 Also, as a system called "Opticom,"

         16  that's a traffic light system that was invented 30,

         17  40 years ago for emergency vehicle response. It was

         18  an intelligent traffic system, and you can greatly

         19  increase the traffic flow on the island. We could

         20  have gotten this for free with federal grants over

         21  the years, and nobody in the City ever even looked

         22  at it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         24  Goldfarb.

         25                 Mr. DeBiase.
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          2                 MR. DeBIASE: My name is Robert

          3  DeBiase, from Great Kills. And I'd like to talk

          4  about the long-term idea to humanize the Staten

          5  Island Expressway, if and when it comes time to add

          6  capacity.

          7                 From its creation, the Staten Island

          8  Expressway has split the Island. Pedestrian

          9  crossings are spaced on average about half a mile

         10  apart and these are congested with traffic. In

         11  addition, the service roads are adjuncts to the main

         12  highway, even though people live on them. The key to

         13  humanizing the Staten Island Expressway is to

         14  increase pedestrian flow, while converting the

         15  service roads to local roads.

         16                 Some ideas. First of all, take one

         17  lane off each service road and put it on the

         18  highway. That would increase capacity of the highway

         19  by one-third.

         20                 Install neck-downs on the service

         21  roads.

         22                 Build pedestrian bridges across the

         23  expressway.

         24                 Build traffic-free bicycle/pedestrian

         25  trails in the medians between the highway and
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          2  service roads.

          3                 Converting the service roads to local

          4  roads would improve the quality of life for

          5  neighborhoods around the expressway and would allow

          6  the sound barriers to work.

          7                 The service road improvements when

          8  combined with the pedestrian bridges and pathways

          9  would allow people to walk to places where currently

         10  they have to drive, providing walk and ride as well

         11  as bike and ride opportunities to augment park and

         12  ride express service.

         13                 A traffic-free bicycle/pedestrian

         14  trail extending across the entire Island would

         15  benefit all Staten Islanders and if extended across

         16  the Verrazano and Goethals Bridges, would benefit

         17  the entire region.

         18                 I would like to close with the

         19  thought that even though the expense of humanizing

         20  the Expressway would be high, it would be marginal

         21  compared to the cost of adding lanes to the highway.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         23  Mr. DeBiase.

         24                 Mr. Lauria.

         25                 MR. LAURIA: My name is Stephen

                                                            135

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  Lauria, and I'm a resident in the Richmondtown area.

          3                 Thank you for having this meeting

          4  tonight.

          5                 I would to say a few words regarding

          6  the Richmondtown Roundabout proposal put forth by

          7  the Borough President's Office, with the help of

          8  some high-price consultants.

          9                 The Roundabout Proposal is actually a

         10  traffic circle. And you know they're getting rid of

         11  traffic circles in New Jersey. It is bad for

         12  Richmondtown, bad for Staten Island and bad for New

         13  York City. If approved, the Roundabout proposal will

         14  cost tens of millions of dollars. That's not

         15  counting the hundreds of thousands paid to

         16  consultants already.

         17                 The Roundabout proposal will also

         18  destroy acres of wetlands and flora.

         19                 There is an alternative put forth by

         20  the Joint Mid Island Civic Associations. The Joint

         21  Mid Island Civic Association proposal would cost a

         22  fraction of what the Roundabout proposal would cost.

         23  Probably costing only several hundred thousand

         24  dollars. The Joint Mid Island Civics proposal would

         25  accomplish basically the same things as the
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          2  Roundabout proposal, but at a fraction of the cost.

          3                 The Roundabout proposal will take

          4  years and years to implement. Joint Mid Island

          5  Civics Proposals, will take months, maybe a year to

          6  implement. Because of this, I am asking you to put

          7  an end to the Roundabout proposal. I ask that you be

          8  fiscally responsible and stop wasting taxpayers'

          9  dollars on the Roundabout proposal and rally behind

         10  the Joint Mid Island Civics proposal.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         13  Mr. Lauria.

         14                 Gentlemen, thank you for joining us

         15  tonight.

         16                 And we now call up our final panel

         17  for this evening, and I truly thank you for being

         18  patient with us tonight. It has been a long hearing,

         19  but we wanted to hear from everybody.

         20                 Karen D'Aloia, Donna Bellmier, Robert

         21  Bendel and Pat Hyland of the Chamber of Commerce.

         22                 Let me at this point take the

         23  opportunity to thank the staff who really worked

         24  very hard to make this hearing possible. We have

         25  Bill Hum, our Legislative Counsel, Robert Kim, our
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          2  Policy Analyst, Chima Obichere from the Finance

          3  Division, and we also have John, and I also want to

          4  thank our Sergeants for keeping everybody calm and

          5  well taken care of.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I want to

          7  take a local point of privilege as a Staten Islander

          8  before the last panel goes, because then I know

          9  everyone will want to leave. I want all of my fellow

         10  Staten Islanders to take note of the fact that the

         11  Speaker, the Chairman, the Speaker Christine Quinn

         12  and my colleague Dan Garodnick and Darlene Mealy

         13  didn't just come in, take a picture and leave.

         14  They've been here the whole hearing.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. So,

         16  please proceed. Identify yourself for the record.

         17                 MS. D'ALOIA: I'm Karen D'Aloia. My

         18  name is Karen D'Aloia, I'm the Westerleigh resident,

         19  and basically everything has been heard. Of course,

         20  as true to my nature, I'm always the last on the

         21  line. Best for last.

         22                 SPEAKER QUINN: There you go.

         23                 MS. D'ALOIA: A couple of things. One,

         24  it would have been nice to have the police and the

         25  MTA present. So many points have been taken up by
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          2  people here. One is the MTA hot line, which is a

          3  running joke. It is, I wish I had their hours,

          4  because they certainly don't apply for a commuter

          5  that needs help for the buses not coming. And I

          6  actually know the people by first-name basis that

          7  answer the phone. I don't know what they get paid,

          8  but for what they do, it's obscene. All they do is

          9  tell you, we got your fax, we got your letter, we

         10  got your call, we're working on it. And you never

         11  hear from them again.

         12                 A couple of things. One, the Richmond

         13  Avenue shopping plaza where Starbucks is and so on,

         14  on the way here tonight there was a major accident,

         15  again. The Gowanus Expressway going through

         16  Brooklyn. We are now sitting in traffic like we used

         17  to do before there was ever Express buses going into

         18  Manhattan. Why? Because you have absolutely no

         19  police presence, when you come off the Verrazano and

         20  you go onto the HOV, that's three or more. You have

         21  the police cars going right past. As you see one

         22  person in the car, or two, and what they tend to do

         23  is, as in approaching Battery Tunnel and BQE, they

         24  stop with traffic going through the cones, creating

         25  a hazard to get through so that they don't get
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          2  pulled over or get onto the BQE. This happens all

          3  the time. My commute now is about an hour when it

          4  used to be 20 minutes getting into Lower Manhattan.

          5                 And one thing that I would like to

          6  say is, you want to see how much truck traffic we

          7  have? If there was a film maker here doing a movie,

          8  in the morning, on the overpass going to my express

          9  bus, you can go from the Goethels to the Verrazano,

         10  on top of the 18-wheelers without touching the

         11  ground.

         12                 That's how much traffic. Just on the

         13  Expressway. Imagine the streets.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I just want to

         16  say, I think you raised the point where we could

         17  have had the police here. We will follow-up with the

         18  Chair of our Public Safety Committee on those issues

         19  that have been raised, and also follow-up with the

         20  Police Department directly, as well. The MTA would

         21  have been good to be here, but as Chairman Liu can

         22  tell you, being a State agency, they don't always

         23  come when we summon them unfortunately, but we will

         24  also follow-up with them. And the Police, I think it

         25  is very important to underscore that. So, thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          3                 Mr. Bendel.

          4                 MR. BENDEL: Thank you for coming this

          5  evening, and to Councilwoman and everyone else here,

          6  congratulations on your recent elections to City and

          7  State government. Just to add one State agency that

          8  may have been able to help us would be the State

          9  DOT. The City DOT was here but one of the things

         10  that we did need is reflective on the Staten Island

         11  Expressway, and the North Shore Expressway.  I

         12  actually passed over this evening on the North Shore

         13  Expressway, which I normally do not take, and it was

         14  a sad thing that the traffic was moving about five

         15  miles per hour. You know, getting off the Staten

         16  Island Expressway towards Outerbridge. Something

         17  should be done with that.

         18                 Also, Staten Island Expressway is

         19  probably a major area that you should find cheaper,

         20  things that we can actually try and implement now,

         21  as opposed to five, ten years in the future.

         22                 I happen to use the Express bus in

         23  the morning, and I'm very happy to report that it

         24  definitely introduces the traffic traveling into the

         25  City.
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          2                 You know, that being said, there was

          3  a proposal, I'm not sure it's beneficial for the

          4  people on the buses, but there was a proposal to add

          5  HOV three lanes as part of this program. I would not

          6  be in favor towards going back into -- towards

          7  Jersey, but towards Brooklyn, there is the access

          8  that is onto the actual -- onto the Bridge, and you

          9  wouldn't be having it merge when you get to the

         10  bridge.

         11                 They were saying that it would be

         12  millions of dollars to implement, you know, such

         13  improvements onto the Staten Island Expressway.

         14  Instead of trying to get, to try to find cheaper

         15  ways for the phones that could be temporary, or

         16  trying something for a month, just try things. Try

         17  improvements.

         18                 Also, the Staten Island Expressway,

         19  which is by Folk Road (phonetic), which is going

         20  towards Jersey, I think right there if we improve

         21  that area, which in reality is all the traffic that

         22  has come from North Shore that would be going

         23  towards Jersey, if we improve that one thing, going

         24  into New Jersey would be much better.

         25                 And I would like to again thank
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          2  everyone for coming and taking your time out.

          3                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Bendel.

          6                 Mr. Hyland.

          7                 MR. HYLAND: I'm Patrick Hyland,

          8  Director of Government Affairs for the Staten Island

          9  Chamber, and I know you already heard from our

         10  President, Linda, so I apologize for keeping you for

         11  two more minutes.

         12                 SPEAKER QUINN: That's okay.

         13                 MR. HYLAND: There is one project that

         14  has been mentioned a lot that I wanted to expound

         15  upon, and that is the North and West Shore Rail

         16  Spur, and where exactly that is, just to kind of

         17  better illustrate when you leave here, you have a

         18  good idea of where we are.

         19                 We started working this project about

         20  two years ago. The right of way is currently managed

         21  by City EDC. After meeting with them late last year,

         22  which was upon a return from Washington, D.C., in a

         23  talk with our federal legislators discussing

         24  appropriations and how to get the federal money for

         25  studies and eventually construction, we met with
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          2  them and they basically said that that money should

          3  go to MTA. MTA should conduct the study and the rail

          4  for the mass transit system.

          5                 So, where we are, we submitted an

          6  appropriation for request earlier this year, and we

          7  did get 3.25 million towards the next study.

          8                 That bill right now is in the

          9  Subcommittee, the Congress reconvened. I have spoken

         10  with our two Senator staffers and Congressman

         11  Fosella's staff, that we are hopeful the money is

         12  going to be allocated to the MTA in December. If not

         13  December, definitely January, but we are hopeful in

         14  December.

         15                 But where we are after that is MTA

         16  has to take that money and the study has to be done

         17  expeditiously by 2008 so we are in position, after

         18  construction cost and design, to submit it for

         19  federal funding. We're talking a big ticket item,

         20  $400 million. We all heard everybody talking before

         21  about funding issues. The MTA, where we need the

         22  Task Force to help the City, MTA and the Governor,

         23  MTA has to conduct the study at the end of 2008 so

         24  we're in position when the next federal

         25  authorization comes up in transportation, we can
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          2  submit it, and all get behind it and get the project

          3  done.

          4                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very, very

          6  much.

          7                 On behalf of Speaker Christine Quinn,

          8  and our colleagues from the City Council, we truly

          9  thank all of the residents who spent this beautiful

         10  Wednesday evening with us, and all of the comments

         11  have been recorded and we will take additional steps

         12  to help alleviate the traffic congestion here on

         13  Staten Island.

         14                 Thank you very much. That being said,

         15  this hearing is adjourned.

         16                 (The following written testimony was

         17  read into the record.)

         18

         19  Written Testimony Of:

         20  Finnerty Property Management, Inc.

         21

         22

         23  The intersection of Hylan Blvd & Fieldway Avenue

         24  (The main entrance for Yacht Club Cove Community)

         25
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          2  Our Concerns:

          3

          4                 1) Problem with newly installed "No

          5  U-Turn" sign.

          6                 By installing a new "No U-turn" sign

          7  at Hylan Blvd & Fieldway Ave. intersection, all

          8  drivers who still want to make a U-turn just drive

          9  into Yacht Club Cove private community and make

         10  their U-Turn on our driveways and common grounds.

         11                 Several months ago a "No U-turn" sign

         12  at Hylan Blvd & Fieldway Ave. intersection of Hylan

         13  Blvd & Fieldway Avenue, prohibiting drivers coming

         14  from the North to make U-turns, but allowing all

         15  residents of Yacht Club Cove Condominium to make a

         16  left turn and enter the community.

         17                 Unfortunately, now all the drivers

         18  who made left U-Turns at Hylan Blvd & Fieldway Ave.

         19  are still making this turn by entering into our

         20  private community and making the U-turn on our

         21  common grounds and driveways. This is where our

         22  children play, as well as where our elderly people

         23  walk with their attendants.

         24                 Now, our own private driveways and

         25  recently repaired common ground, for which we paid a
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          2  condominium assessment, are used by public traffic

          3  from Hylan Blvd.

          4                 Furthermore, some homeowners have

          5  already reported damage occurring while their cars

          6  were parked on their own driveways. Of course, our

          7  main concern here is the safety of our families as

          8  the current condition in our community is extremely

          9  dangerous and needs immediate attention.

         10                 2) There is No Traffic Light at Hylan

         11  Blvd and Filedway Ave. (sic) intersection and there

         12  is No sidewalk to the next Traffic Light at Hylan

         13  Blvd. and Keegans Ln.

         14                 Daily our children risk their lives

         15  by crossing Hylan Blvd and Fieldway Ave intersection

         16  on their way to school or when they are coming back

         17  from school.

         18                 There is no traffic light at Hylan

         19  Blvd and Filedway Ave. (sic) intersection and there

         20  is also no sidewalk along Hylan Blvd between

         21  Fairlawn Ave and Keegans Ln, which make it

         22  impossible to walk to the next Traffic Light in

         23  order to cross Hylan Blvd.

         24

         25                 Sincerely, Board of Managers
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          2                 Yacht Club Cove Community at Hylan

          3  Blvd, Great Kills

          4

          5  c/o

          6  W.W. Finnerty Property Management, Inc.

          7  P.O. Box 060618

          8  Staten Island, NY 10306

          9  Phone: 718-980-3657

         10  Fax: 718-351-3074

         11  E-mail: Twfinnerty1@verizon.net

         12

         13

         14  Written Testimony Of:

         15  Board of Managers

         16  Yacht Club Cove Condominium at Hylan Blvd, Great

         17  Kills

         18

         19                 Dear Hon. Andrew Lanza

         20

         21                 This letter is on behalf of the 53

         22  Homeowners in Yacht Club Cove Condominium in Great

         23  Kills, Staten Island. This is a very serious issue

         24  affecting our lives as well as the lives of our

         25  children.
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          2                 Your recent project, "Hylan Blvd Left

          3  Turn Improvement", prohibiting left turns and

          4  improving the traffic flow on Hylan Blvd, has

          5  already increased vehicle movement and safety.

          6                 Our Concern:

          7                 Yacht Club Cove has two entrances:

          8  The main "non-gated" entrance is at the Hylan Blvd &

          9  Fieldway Avenue intersection. The other entrance is

         10  gated on Mansion Avenue.

         11                 Several months ago a "No-U-Turn" sign

         12  was set-up at the intersection of Hylan Blvd &

         13  Fieldway Avenue, prohibiting drivers coming from the

         14  North to make U-turns, but allowing all residents of

         15  Yacht Club Cover to make a left turn and enter the

         16  community.

         17                 Unfortunately, now all the drivers

         18  who made left U-Turns at Hylan Blvd & Fieldway Ave.

         19  are still making this turn by entering into our

         20  private community and making the U-turn on our

         21  common grounds and driveways. This is where our

         22  children either play, as well as where our elderly

         23  people walk with their attendants.

         24                 Basically, by installing a

         25  "No-U-turn" sign at this intersection, all drivers
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          2  who still want to make a U-turn just drive into our

          3  property and make their U-turn on our driveways and

          4  common grounds.

          5                 Now, our own private driveways and

          6  recently repaired common ground, for which we paid a

          7  condominium assessment, are used by public traffic

          8  from Hylan Blvd. Furthermore, some homeowners have

          9  already reported damage occurring while their cars

         10  were parked on their own driveways. Of course, our

         11  main concern here is the safety of our families as

         12  the current condition in our community is extremely

         13  dangerous and needs immediate attention.

         14                 The intersection on Hylan Blvd &

         15  Fieldway Avenue must be immediately re-evaluated.

         16                 1. Install the Traffic Light at this

         17  intersection and allow people to make U-Turn or left

         18  turn at the green light; or

         19                 2. Remove the "No-U-Turn" sign from

         20  the intersection to allow drivers to make a U-turn

         21  without coming into our community; or

         22                 3. Completely close the intersection

         23  on Hylan & Fieldway Ave. so that no one will be able

         24  to make a U-Turn or even a left turn. In this case

         25  all residents of Yacht Club Cove coming from the
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          2  North will go to the next traffic light where they

          3  can make U-turn or use our other automated gated

          4  entrance from the Mansion Avenue.

          5                 Once again, this is a dangerous and

          6  hazardous condition for the residents and children

          7  of the community. We are asking for your help and

          8  assistance in this urgent matter.

          9

         10                 Sincerely,

         11                 Board of Managers

         12                 Yacht Club Cove Condominium at Hylan

         13  Blvd, Great Kills

         14

         15

         16  c/o T.W. Finnerty Property Management, Inc.

         17  P.O. Box 060618

         18  Staten Island, NY 10306

         19  Phone: 718-9803657

         20  Fax: 718-351-3074

         21  E-mail:twfinnerty1@verizon.net

         22

         23

         24

         25
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          2  Written Testimony Of:

          3  Chris Coppa

          4  35 Aymar Ave

          5  SI 10301

          6  718-720-0034

          7

          8  S.I.B.A. & Transportation Alternatives

          9

         10                 1. Improve ferry service as well.

         11                 - Residents in Brooklyn, Queens, etc.

         12  (other boroughs) w/be up in arms & we would have

         13  riots if people had to wait an hour for the next

         14  train.

         15                 However, this is what Staten

         16  Islanders are subject to when limited by ferries

         17  that travel once an hour - ferries should run at

         18  least every 20-30 min through the week, 24 hrs a

         19  day.

         20                 2. Purchase of buses that have room

         21  for bicycles or ferries from Bay Ridge to S.I.

         22                 - Someone traveling by bicycle from

         23  Dyker Heights or Bay Ridge for example, to Staten

         24  Island needs to go all the way to Brooklyn Heights &

         25  take the Brooklyn bridge, then make way down to the
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          2  ferry to go into S.I.

          3                 This is a ridiculous headache for

          4  bicyclists who wish to lessen the cars on the road.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 9:50 p.m.)

          6
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 15th day of November 2006.

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

                                   ---------------------

         24                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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